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1 MR. PEEK:  And, Your Honor, as part of that process,

2 because I'm sort of peripherally involved --

3           THE COURT:  Well, Mr. Kay gave an affidavit about

4 it, so yeah.

5 MR. PEEK:  Right.  Because I'm peripherally

6 involved, there will be an issue, Your Honor, as to whether or

7 not any of the documents can rightfully be used.  And that'll

8 be briefed in detail, rightfully be used --

9           THE COURT:  Absolutely.

10 MR. PEEK:  -- because we'll take depositions, we'll

11 get to the bottom, as Mr. --

12           THE COURT:  And you have a motion for protective

13 order that's coming up and a motion to compel return of

14 documents that's coming up.  I mean, I've got all sorts of

15 motion practice coming up.

16 MR. PEEK:  Yeah.  But I just didn't want there to be

17 any question about this, is that, as Mr. Pisanelli wants to

18 take the deposition of the IT folks in Macau, we likewise want

19 to take the deposition of Mr. Jacobs --

20           THE COURT:  That's Item Number 4.

21 MR. PEEK:  -- as to how he came into possession.

22           THE COURT:  I'm not into 4 yet.

23 MR. PEEK:  You're right.  I thought it was part of

24 the protocols.  But you're right, it is.

25           THE COURT:  That's depos.
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1 MR. PISANELLI:  I promise --

2           THE COURT:  Mr. Pisanelli.

3 MR. PISANELLI:  I promise Mr. Peek not --

4           THE COURT:  I have the July 8, 2011, email in front

5 of me, as well as the ESI order that is already in file on

6 this case dated June 23rd, 2011.

7 MR. PISANELLI:  Yep.  That last paragraph at the

8 bottom of page 1 we are prepared to comply with today.  There

9 is a fraction of hyperbole in it, but the point is immediately

10 or nearly immediately we can give them exactly what Mr.

11 Williams said in July.  They can have in .tif form, Bates

12 stamped, all of them.  There is no reason for delay.  We don't

13 need to go through all of this long basically disguised TRO

14 that they presented to you, squeezing in the language that

15 you've rejected time and time again.  They want a copy of

16 everything in .tif form, they want it all Bates numbered so

17 that there's identifier of exactly what they're in possession

18 of, I'm telling Your Honor as early as tomorrow I think.  And

19 if it's -- if I can't get that done, it's going to be like

20 within days.  I'm not talking months, weeks, anything of that

21 sort.  We're ready to give it to them and let's get this

22 process underway.

23 I promise Mr. Peek that I will not claim ever to be

24 surprised that either of them are going to argue that all of

25 them should be excluded.  I'm very much aware of that
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1 position, and I'm very much aware that he's not waived it

2 today and that I will be hearing this argument again.  I get

3 it.  But our position, like Mr. Williams's, has always been,

4 here, you can have a copy of them, tell us what you think

5 we're not entitled to see or use and keeping in mind that Ms.

6 Glaser once again, in our view, said -- told you the exact

7 opposite of what the law is.  That privilege, though they hold

8 it, cannot be asserted against a party like Mr. Jacobs who was

9 entitled to these communications in the course of his work. 

10 They cannot assert it, they cannot claim that he doesn't get

11 to see them.  She is dead wrong on the law.  But we'll debate

12 that another day.

13 So we don't need all of this long disguised issue.

14           THE COURT:  Okay.  So can --

15 MR. PISANELLI:  This is what we'll do.

16           THE COURT:  Wait.  I need to get clarification from

17 you.

18 MR. PISANELLI:  Yes.

19           THE COURT:  I assume from your suggestion that the

20 last paragraph of the July 8th, 2011, email, which I'm marking

21 as Court's Exhibit 1 for purposes of today's hearing, that you

22 will transmit an electronic version to the ESI vendor that all

23 of you agree upon.  How, then, do you intend to do the review 

24 to determine if there is privileged material of Mr. Jacobs

25 separate and apart from any materials that might be for the
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1 Sands?

2 MR. PISANELLI:  Yeah.  We will --

3           THE COURT:  How are you going to do that search?

4 MR. PISANELLI:  We will -- that's a very good

5 question.

6           THE COURT:  It's a search term question, really.

7 MR. PISANELLI:  It is a search term.  And we will

8 work with our client to determine what possibly could be in

9 there.  I remain optimistic and hopeful that that is going to

10 be minimal, but I don't want to give away that issue.

11           THE COURT:  Okay.  Here is my concern, because I

12 certainly agree that is an appropriate procedure.  My fear is

13 I don't want you looking at all 11 gigabytes of information. 

14 I want the vendor to run a search using the search terms

15 you've identified that are expansive enough to capture all of

16 the potential documents that may be privileged to Mr. Jacobs

17 separate and apart from the other documents that are at issue

18 in this ongoing battle.  That is my concern.

19 MR. PISANELLI:  I can live with that.

20           THE COURT:  I don't want you to go through all the

21 documents --

22 MR. PISANELLI:  I don't want to.

23           THE COURT:  -- but I want you to be able to review

24 the documents that this isolated search that you propose the

25 search terms to can identify --
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1 MR. PISANELLI:  Sure.

2           THE COURT:  -- and then you have to do the privilege

3 log and provide that.

4 MR. PISANELLI:  That makes perfect sense to me.

5           THE COURT:  Then -- then after that happens

6 typically what I would hope is that the rest of the documents,

7 since Sands China has indicated an intention to review all

8 11 gigabytes or more of data, that with the exception of those

9 that you've identified as attorney-client of Mr. Jacobs and

10 which I agree with you, they will then begin document by

11 document reviewing those and making the identification as to

12 whether there is a privilege or it is protected by Macau law

13 or it is a trade secret, which are their three things they've

14 told me are important to them.  But I need you to do that

15 review first, since Mr. Williams specifically identified that

16 as an issue in the July email.  And I need to know what your

17 position is and your timing related to that, because it will

18 greatly impact the work I have done.

19 I will tell you, I have a case -- and none of you

20 guys are involved in this, luckily -- where it took them six

21 months for the first person to complete the review before the

22 data could be transmitted to the other people.  And that's too

23 long.  And I get grumpy when people don't do their job in a

24 expeditious fashion.

25 So tell me what your plan is.
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1 MR. PISANELLI:  My plan would be the following.  Of

2 course, go down the path that you described, give me 30 days. 

3 Trigger whatever it is you will require of the defendants

4 based upon my production, not the 30 days, so that if I can

5 hypothetically call back and say, Your Honor, I don't need to

6 do that, Mr. Jacobs knows exactly what he possesses and is

7 willing to produce without any redaction, so I'll give it to

8 them immediately.  So I don't know that to be the truth.  I

9 suspect it's probably not the case.  But I think 30 days

10 should work.  And if it won't, I will -- the burden will be on

11 me to come back to you and explain why I need more time and

12 how much more time.  And then I won't -- I'll reserve comment,

13 but I'll let defendants decide how long they will need.

14           THE COURT:  How long do you need to make the

15 determination as to whether you're going to have the search

16 terms run?

17 MR. PISANELLI:  That I can let you know by the

18 beginning of the week.

19 MS. GLASER:  I'm sorry.  I didn't hear that.

20           THE COURT:  He said he needs the beginning of next

21 week.

22 MS. GLASER:  Fine.

23           THE COURT:  How about I give you a couple extra

24 days, because I'm always worried when people tell me they can

25 do things that short, to the 19th.
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1 MR. PISANELLI:  Okay.

2           THE COURT:  And if you decide after communicating

3 with your client that you are not going to need to have the

4 search terms run to make a determination as to whether there

5 are any independent documents protected by attorney-client

6 privilege or a privilege that would be held by Mr. Jacobs, as

7 opposed to Sands China, then you will tell us on October 19th. 

8 You're either going to have the search terms available to the

9 ESI vendor who will then run the search in their fashion and

10 give you the results, or you will say, I don't need to have

11 the search run.

12 And then Sands China will have how long to give me

13 your search terms?  Oh.  No.  You want to review them all.

14 MR. PEEK:  We want to look at all the documents,

15 Your Honor.

16 MS. GLASER:  Believe me, I'm not looking forward to

17 it, Your Honor.

18           THE COURT:  Then the ESI vendor will have to post

19 them and make them available on a remote site, and they will

20 keep a log of every document that is reviewed and by whom,

21 which means they have to assign user identification numbers to

22 everyone who is involved in the process.

23 And how long will it take Sands China to review the

24 documents, assuming there's about 11 gigs?

25 MS. GLASER:  I need to know --
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1           THE COURT:  The answer is "longer."

2 MR. PEEK:  Yeah.  It's longer than 45 days, Your

3 Honor.

4           THE COURT:  Do you like how I added that part?

5 MR. PEEK:  Yeah, I get that, Your Honor.  It's not

6 six months.

7           THE COURT:  Mr. Pisanelli, you think if you're doing

8 this you get 30 days' review period if you get to that point?

9 MS. GLASER:  Your Honor, we would request 90 days,

10 because it will take that long to do this properly.

11 And I do have a clarification request.

12           THE COURT:  Okay.  Hold on.  Let me finish writing

13 notes here.

14 (Pause in the proceedings)

15           THE COURT:  All right.  You had a question?

16 MR. PISANELLI:  I do, as well.

17           THE COURT:  I don't care who goes first.

18 MS. GLASER:  I've got a couple of questions, Your

19 Honor.  I need to make sure -- I'm being told I need to make

20 sure --

21           THE COURT:  We need your people who are IT people

22 and specialists who have done this before to communicate with

23 me.  Please feel free -- even if you're not admitted in Nevada

24 or you're not a lawyer, please feel free to come up to the

25 table so that when Ms. Glaser is telling me what you want her
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1 to tell me she tells me what you mean.  Because I --

2 MS. GLASER:  Ninety days.  When do we count the 90

3 days from?  That's the big issue.

4           THE COURT:  We'll count the 90 days from the date

5 either on which you get the notification from Mr. Pisanelli on

6 October 19th that he does not need to run search terms to

7 determine if there's any privileged material on behalf of Mr.

8 Jacobs that would be separate and apart, or, alternatively,

9 upon the time that he gives you the list of privileged

10 material and the ESI vendor can then begin making other

11 materials that are not on his privilege log available to

12 you --

13 MR. PEEK:  Your Honor --

14           THE COURT:  -- while I am in the process of

15 reviewing the materials that are on the privilege log that Mr.

16 Pisanelli identifies typically through motion practice.

17 Yes.

18 MS. GLASER:  Your Honor, we may finish it shorter

19 than 90 days, and we want to be able to move this process

20 along, too.

21           THE COURT:  If you finish short of 90 days, you

22 know, you give it to me.

23 MR. PEEK:  Well, I -- here's my question.

24           THE COURT:  But I doubt you're going to.

25 MR. PEEK:  Because the 90 days is starting from the

LVSC/SCL0219



81

1 19th of October, I think is what --

2           THE COURT:  Not necessarily.

3 MR. PEEK:  Okay.  That's what I'm trying to get --

4           THE COURT:  You have a moving target on when the

5 90 days starts.

6 MR. PEEK:  Because we have to -- we have to get the

7 documents loaded, Bate numbered --

8           THE COURT:  That's not you.  Here's what happens --

9 MR. PEEK:  That's my question.

10           THE COURT:  Mr. Pisanelli has electronic data.

11 The electronic data within 48 hours of today, which is by --

12 48 judicial hours, which is by Monday, will be given to the

13 ESI vendor, which typically means you upload it to their site.

14 MR. PISANELLI:  I think it's already done.

15           THE COURT:  All right.

16 MR. PISANELLI:  I think it's already Bates numbered,

17 .tif, and it's ready to be produced.

18           THE COURT:  So if that's the case and the vendor

19 already has it --

20 MR. PISANELLI:  And I believe the vendor to be

21 QUiVX, so outside institutional company --

22 MS. GLASER:  Don't we have to agree?

23 MR. PEEK:  But the --

24           THE COURT:  Wait, wait, wait.  Let's --

25 MR. PEEK:  The issue that we have -- and I'm not
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1 questioning Mr. Pisanelli's assertion here -- is we have a

2 much broader protocol as to what it is that he has in his

3 possession.  So when he says --

4           THE COURT:  You're asking for exactly the same thing

5 that's already in the ESI protocol that I've signed.  Isn't it

6 nice that you were consistent?

7 MS. GLASER:  May I --

8 MR. PEEK:  Your Honor, there's a broader -- if you

9 looked at our -- if you look in our ESI protocol, which is a

10 broader one of everything that he ever had, that he got during

11 the course of his employment, that's not --

12           THE COURT:  I've limited the discovery on these

13 issues to a specific period of time.  My recollection, and I

14 will refer to the ESI protocol, since I was wrong the last

15 time I said it, was that time frame ran from January 1st,

16 2009, to October 20th, 2010.

17 MR. PEEK:  Right.  I agree with that one.

18 MS. GLASER:  This is a clarification --

19 MR. PEEK:  May I see that, Your Honor, just for a

20 moment.

21           THE COURT:  Yes.  I just punched it.  Max has been

22 very good at going to the --

23 MR. PEEK:  Go ahead, Ms. Glaser.  I'm sorry.

24 MS. GLASER:  Because Your Honor rightfully has not

25 ruled on the appropriateness of Mr. Jacobs having these
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1 documents, and I appreciate that, we want a representation,

2 which we will take to Your Honor, from Counsel that there will

3 be nothing done -- our protocol that we had -- the special

4 protocol that we had suggested made everybody turn over all

5 the documents, and the ESI vendor is sort of the neutral who

6 has everything.  If he chooses not to do that or Your Honor

7 doesn't order it and we think Your Honor should, then at

8 minimum there should be a representation to the Court that

9 there will be no use of the documents and/or the information

10 in the documents absent further order of the Court.

11           THE COURT:  Well, until the process is completed. 

12 The process is -- the anticipated path is that the electronic

13 images are provided by Mr. Pisanelli to the ESI vendor, and I

14 haven't determined that the one he's already picked is the

15 one, but we'll have that discussion in a minute.  He provides

16 that.  The understanding is he's not looking at those

17 documents anymore, which is why I'm making him use search

18 terms to review the documents.

19 MS. GLASER:  And I appreciate that.

20           THE COURT:  The reason he's having to review search

21 terms is my goal was to keep him from getting further down a

22 path where there may be a document that is protected by the

23 attorney-client privilege, the Macau Privacy Act, or a trade

24 secret that Mr. Jacobs has that I later determine he shouldn't

25 have and I don't get into a position later where I have to
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1 disqualify counsel because he was looking at documents when he

2 shouldn't be.

3 MS. GLASER:  Understood.

4           THE COURT:  I don't want to be in that position,

5 because it will make my case take longer.

6 MS. GLASER:  Fair enough.

7           THE COURT:  And it also screws things up

8 procedurally.

9 MR. PEEK:  And, Your Honor, I apologize.  You are

10 correct.  Because our protocol did capture this, because it

11 says that, "The parties must accurately identify and produce

12 responsive non-privileged, active ESI stored [unintelligible]

13 that is in their possession, custody, or control

14 notwithstanding its location."

15           THE COURT:  True.

16 MR. PEEK:  So --

17           THE COURT:  And that's already an order I issue,

18 although it's stayed for all purposes except this.

19 MR. PEEK:  Yeah.  I guess it's really the "identify

20 and produce responsive," but if he's just giving me everything

21 that he has, that's what Mr. Pisanelli is telling me, is that

22 everything that Mr. Jacobs has I'm going to give to the ESI

23 vendor.

24 MS. GLASER:  Your Honor --

25           THE COURT:  And that's a yes, not just a nod.  Come
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1 on.  Nods don't come out on my record, Mr. Pisanelli.  Say

2 yes.

3 MR. PISANELLI:  I'm just waiting till he's finished.

4           THE COURT:  Well, the nodding was -- say yes.

5 MR. PISANELLI:  Yes.

6           THE COURT:  Okay.  Thank you.

7 MS. GLASER:  Your Honor, the other clarification --

8 and we did -- if you looked at -- and I can hand it up to the

9 Court if it's easier.  At paragraph 6 we actually --

10           THE COURT:  Of yours?

11 MS. GLASER:  Of our protocol.  Do you want me to

12 hand it up to you?

13           THE COURT:  No.  I have it.

14 MS. GLASER:  Oh.  I'm sorry.

15           THE COURT:  I have all this stuff.  Okay.  And I've

16 dealt with ESI issues many times.

17 MS. GLASER:  We actually provide a mechanism for

18 what Mr. Jacobs might determine to be his attorney-client

19 privilege, as opposed to --

20           THE COURT:  Well, but you understand that what

21 paragraph 6 says is he's giving the search terms.  That's what

22 paragraph 6 says.  I already told him that.

23 MS. GLASER:  Okay.  As long as we're in the same

24 boat.  Thank you.

25           THE COURT:  But the search terms doesn't have to
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1 necessarily be only those items that you've identified in 6,

2 because there may be other items that the search terms Mr.

3 Pisanelli believes are appropriate to elicit a response as to

4 a document he believes Mr. Jacobs would hold the attorney-

5 client privilege for may be something which isn't an attorney,

6 but there's a particular subject that is an unrelated legal

7 issue that's captured on there.

8 MS. GLASER:  Okay.  I'm --

9           THE COURT:  Do you understand what I'm saying?

10 MS. GLASER:  Fair enough.  Fair enough.

11           THE COURT:  He hired a lawyer to help him with a

12 special LLC called, for instance, Sagebrush, so he wants to

13 run "Sagebrush" as one of the search terms, so he'll make sure

14 he pulls all that stuff.

15 MS. GLASER:  Now, this is my question, because I

16 just need to understand this.  He goes through that process

17 just as Your Honor's outlined, and now he identifies -- I'm

18 making up a number -- 10 documents that he feels outside -- he

19 wants to make sure they're protected from his standpoint.  How

20 does Your Honor then make the determination whether that's

21 justified?

22           THE COURT:  He does a privilege log.  You get a copy

23 of the privilege log from him, because he serves it upon you. 

24 If you look at it and you think there is a problem, then you

25 talk to him, because that's what Rule 2.34 requires you to do.
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1 MS. GLASER:  I'm never going to be before Your Honor

2 again --

3           THE COURT:  And then --

4 MS. GLASER:  -- without doing that.

5           THE COURT:  -- after you talk to him -- or you could

6 talk to Ms. Spinelli or Mr. Bice or whoever it is in their

7 office they designate to respond to you, after you've had that

8 communication in good faith to try and resolve the issue on

9 the privilege log, then you're going to file a motion to

10 require the production.

11 MS. GLASER:  Understood.

12           THE COURT:  And then he's going to say, this is the

13 basis.  And what almost always happens, unfortunately, is I

14 then do an in-camera review.

15 MS. GLASER:  Understood.

16           THE COURT:  Almost always.

17 All right.  Yes.

18 MR. PISANELLI:  Perhaps -- I have to confess to you

19 I'm a little confused.

20           THE COURT:  You've done ESI before.  You can't be

21 confused.

22 MR. PISANELLI:  I have done it before, and I'm still

23 -- I always get confused.

24           THE COURT:  Mr. Peek can be confused, 'cause he's

25 older than us.
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1 MR. BICE:  On that we concur, Your Honor.

2 MR. PISANELLI:  I have --

3           THE COURT:  But he brought Mr. Anderson, who

4 understands it.

5 MR. PEEK:  I brought Brian with me today, Your

6 Honor, to help me.

7 MR. PISANELLI:  I have a body of documents that are

8 stored electronically.  And I'm going to do this broad strokes

9 just to make sure I'm where you want me to be on this, okay. 

10 I have a body of evidence that is stored electronically.  It

11 has been identified by Bates number and whatever .tif means is

12 what it is.  I am going to take that body of evidence in

13 electronic form, not hard copies, and I'm going to give it to

14 the defendants.  The only thing I expect to extract from that

15 body of evidence is -- are the documents, if any, that I

16 believe they are not entitled to see.

17           THE COURT:  Correct.

18 MR. PISANELLI:  And that will not be made a secret

19 to them or you or anyone else.  They will know by Bates number

20 document, et cetera.  In order to determine what of that body

21 of evidence I am not going to give to them, I'm going to give

22 the ESI vendor --

23           THE COURT:  Well, not that you're not going to give

24 to them, to which you are making a claim of privilege.

25 MR. PISANELLI:  Yes.
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1 MR. PEEK:  Privilege log.

2 MR. PISANELLI:  Yes.  Of course.  And in order

3 to find them I'm not going to do what they are going to do

4 and read every document and pull them out.  I am going to

5 give search terms to the vendor to say, here is the body of

6 evidence, find me documents that have these words.  And

7 then --

8           THE COURT:  And that search terms, the search terms

9 that are communicated to the vendor get circulated to

10 everyone.  So if there is a dispute as to whether the search

11 terms are too broad or they think your search term is going to

12 pull information to which they will claim a privilege, then I

13 have a different issue I have to resolve.

14 MR. PISANELLI:  That's actually where I was headed

15 with the confusion.  So I'm there.

16           THE COURT:  Are we done now?

17 MR. PISANELLI:  I think so.

18           THE COURT:  Any other questions on my Item Number 3,

19 which was the ESI protocol issue?

20 MR. PEEK:  Maybe Number 4 is going to capture it,

21 because I certainly have questions, Your Honor.

22           THE COURT:  4 is my depo issue.

23 MR. PEEK:  Yeah.  But I even have more questions. 

24 What I'm concerned about is are we receiving in native format

25 with metadata attached in those 11 gigabytes that will let us
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1 know or give us insight as to when the documents were --

2           THE COURT:  Hold on.  Let me ask the question for

3 Mr. Pisanelli.

4 How did the documents get converted into their

5 current .tif format with Bates numbering on them?

6 MR. PISANELLI:  I didn't do it, so I would be

7 guessing.

8           THE COURT:  I don't want you to guess.

9 MR. PISANELLI:  I don't know.

10           THE COURT:  How do I find out?

11 MR. PISANELLI:  That was handled by outside counsel

12 -- by outside I mean out side of me --

13           THE COURT:  Correct.

14 MR. PISANELLI:  -- and I have kept myself away from

15 the process.

16           THE COURT:  Frequently people hire Dennis Kennedy to

17 do that, for some reason, and I have no idea why he's the one

18 who always gets hired.

19 MR. PISANELLI:  I did not hire Dennis Kennedy.

20 MR. PEEK:  Oh.  You're shocking me.

21 MR. PISANELLI:  But it was handled by counsel for

22 Mr. Jacobs, and I have maintained distance --

23           THE COURT:  Okay.

24 MR. PISANELLI:  -- with that process.

25           THE COURT:  Here's the question that I need
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1 answered.  And it may be that the ESI vendor will have to be

2 the one who tells me the answer to this question.  If they get

3 information and it appears to them that the .tif files they

4 are receiving are files that were, for lack of a better term,

5 printed and scanned, then I'm going to have a problem.

6 MR. PISANELLI:  Okay.  I'll find that out.

7 MR. PEEK:  Yeah.  Because you've seen in our

8 protocol what we talk about is the metadata attached to the

9 .tif file.  That's --

10           THE COURT:  It's not in -- it's in the order.  It's

11 in an order.  I assume that the order that is currently in

12 place, dated June 23rd, 2011, was complied with.

13 Here, Mr. Pisanelli.  I'm going to give you a copy,

14 because you weren't here then.

15 MR. PISANELLI:  And by the way, if it was not

16 complied with, can't even represent to you that this was done

17 before or after this order, but I will do this.  I mean, if --

18 if we don't have the metadata, for instance, and that is

19 something you want, then we're just going to have to --

20           THE COURT:  Well, no.  It's something I ordered.

21 MR. PISANELLI:  I'm sorry?

22           THE COURT:  It's something I ordered.

23 MR. PISANELLI:  Okay.

24           THE COURT:  It's not something I want.

25 MR. PISANELLI:  My point is, then, maybe money has
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1 been wasted and we have to start over.

2           THE COURT:  That may be.

3 All right.  So next question.  The vendors.

4 MR. PISANELLI:  All I know is that QUiVX was used,

5 contracted directly with the law firm.  I understand there to

6 be a confidentiality obligation in relation to their work. 

7 That's all I can represent to you.

8 MR. PEEK:  Don't know anything about them, Your

9 Honor.  I just want the opportunity to --

10           THE COURT:  Other people have used them in other

11 cases.

12 MR. PEEK:  They're not familiar to me, and --

13           THE COURT:  They aren't one that I've had a problem

14 with yet.

15 MR. PEEK:  Oh.  That's a good sign, then.

16 MS. GLASER:  Are not, or are?

17           THE COURT:  Have not yet had a problem with.

18 MS. GLASER:  Your Honor, we probably will have no

19 problem, because --

20           THE COURT:  But I want you to look and decide if you

21 have a problem.

22 MR. PEEK:  We want to check to vet them, that's all.

23           THE COURT:  How long do you need?  Because I ordered

24 Mr. Pisanelli to give it to them by Monday, and I'm not going

25 to make you give it, since they already have it.
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1 MR. PEEK:  In an abundance of caution, Your Honor,

2 I'll give him till Tuesday, if it's okay with the Court, so

3 that we can vet them, because it's already Thursday.

4           THE COURT:  How long do you need to vet is what I'm

5 trying to find out.

6 MS. GLASER:  By the end of the day on Monday we

7 should be able to get back to Mr. Pisanelli, and if you -- if

8 Your Honor wishes, Your Honor, as well.

9           THE COURT:  I don't care.  But if you don't pick

10 QUiVX, then I need to see you.

11 MR. PEEK:  Then we need to pick somebody --

12           THE COURT:  Unless you agree, I need to see you.

13 So the 48 hours that I gave you is tolled pending a

14 decision on either they agree to QUiVX or I order a particular

15 person to be your vendor.

16 MS. GLASER:  Thank you, Your Honor.

17 MR. PEEK:  Thank you, Your Honor.

18           THE COURT:  So none of the dates are going to start

19 moving until you hit that, till you know who your vendor is.

20 MS. GLASER:  Understood.

21           THE COURT:  All right.  Does anybody have any

22 questions, including those people who are more technically

23 oriented than the rest of us, about what I have ordered, which

24 are simply modifications to the prior ESI order?

25 MR. PISANELLI:  I have a non-technical question on
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1 cost.

2 MS. GLASER:  We do not, Your Honor.

3           THE COURT:  Okay.  So Mr. -- your cost question, Mr.

4 Pisanelli?

5 MR. PISANELLI:  What do we do about it?

6           THE COURT:  I don't know.  What's it say in the

7 order?

8 MR. PISANELLI:  I don't know.  I haven't read it.

9           THE COURT:  I gave you my copy.  Hold on a second.

10 MR. PISANELLI:  I gave it back to you.

11           THE COURT:  I think we addressed that in the

12 original order.

13 MR. PEEK:  Yeah.

14           THE COURT:  "Each party expressly reserves its right

15 to petition the Court to shift the cost of the production of

16 the ESI to the requesting party."  That's what it says.

17 MR. PEEK:  Yeah.  I agree.  That's what my

18 recollection was, too, Your Honor.

19           THE COURT:  You want it back?

20 MR. PISANELLI:  No, we've got one.

21           THE COURT:  Anything else?

22 MR. PISANELLI:  I don't think so.

23 MS. GLASER:  No.  Thank you, Your Honor.

24 MR. PEEK:  Well, but what do we do in the short run

25 of paying, paying QUiVX?  Because certainly we have that cost
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1 shifting.

2           THE COURT:  He's the producing party.

3 MR. PEEK:  So he's paying for it, he can shift it

4 back to me later if he wants?

5           THE COURT:  On that part.  He can shift it later.

6 MR. PEEK:  Okay.

7           THE COURT:  But when you then are accessing your

8 however many documents it ends up being, you're paying for all

9 of that and the logging that has to be done.  And I will tell

10 you that there have been occasions where I've had to review

11 the log that the ESI vendor keeps to make a determination as

12 to whether anything fishy happened.

13 MR. PEEK:  Okay.  So, if I understand correctly,

14 what you have suggested as a protocol for review of document

15 by document with SCL is not contained within the body of the

16 protocol, I don't believe, where we keep a log, as you're

17 suggesting --

18           THE COURT:  You don't keep a log.  That's part of

19 what the ESI vendor does.  They issue user names.  They

20 typically keep a log of everybody who accesses each document.

21 MR. PEEK:  But that -- but we wouldn't have that,

22 for example, Your Honor --

23           THE COURT:  You don't get it.  We only get it when

24 there's trouble.

25 MR. PEEK:  Right.
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1           THE COURT:  And hopefully we won't have trouble.

2 MR. PEEK:  My point is, Your Honor, that I don't

3 recall seeing that in the protocol, that there is, as you say

4 -- because I know, for example, when I'm reviewing the

5 documents right now -- when I reviewed them before the stay

6 and produced them to Jacobs, I had folks reviewing on my

7 system where I had uploaded them.  And I would assume that Jim

8 would have done the same thing on his system had we gone

9 through the normal process without this dispute.

10           THE COURT:  Hold on.

11 MR. PEEK:  So I just want to make -- I just want to

12 have that clarification.

13           THE COURT:  You're absolutely right that it is not

14 covered in this order.

15 MR. PEEK:  Right.  So we just need to -- and I get

16 what you're saying, Your Honor --

17           THE COURT:  Typically the ESI vendors keep that. 

18 That's why they make you have user names that are independent

19 for everyone who accesses it.  I'm trying to see if I can find

20 -- you had a proposal from a vendor that was a contractual

21 document, didn't you?

22 MS. GLASER:  No.  Ours --

23 MR. PEEK:  I don't recall that we did, Your Honor,

24 have a proposal from a vendor.

25 MS. GLASER:  No.  Our proposal is not from a vendor,
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1 it's from a bunch of lawyers.

2           THE COURT:  Oh.  Okay.

3 MS. GLASER:  I can hand that up to Your Honor if you

4 don't have a copy.

5 MR. PEEK:  Because I -- you know, we have to have a

6 protocol about, okay, you're going to keep this log, but I

7 don't --

8           THE COURT:  They keep the log.

9 MR. PEEK:  They keep a log.  If I access Bate range

10 of --

11 MS. GLASER:  They know.

12 MR. PEEK:  -- they know how long I'm there, what I

13 do.  I'm okay with --

14           THE COURT:  They don't typically know how long

15 you're there.  They know if you reviewed it or if you

16 downloaded it.  That's typically the things that are recorded

17 on those logs.

18 MR. PEEK:  And we are going to be downloading --

19           THE COURT:  Some.

20 MR. PEEK:  -- some.  So I'm going to just look on

21 the screen.  Okay.

22           THE COURT:  Depends whether you hire a hundred law

23 students to help you with your 11-gig review like some of the

24 people do.

25 MR. PEEK:  I know.  To get it done in the 90 days. 

LVSC/SCL0236



98

1 Okay.

2 MS. GLASER:  Thank you, Your Honor.

3 MR. PEEK:  So we'll have to -- we'll have to put

4 that into place somehow, Your Honor.  We'll put that protocol

5 into place.

6           THE COURT:  That needs to be in whatever order we

7 use adopting and approving the ESI vendor.

8 MR. PEEK:  We'll work on that, Your Honor.

9           THE COURT:  Okay.  Because there will have to be

10 either a stip and order for the ESI vendor for their

11 protection, as well as yours, or, if it's a contested issue,

12 we'll issue an order from me.

13 MR. PEEK:  And I'll work with Mr. Pisanelli on

14 getting that work -- on getting that done, Your Honor.

15           THE COURT:  Anything else?

16 MR. PISANELLI:  On this topic, or others?

17           THE COURT:  On the ESI protocol issues.

18 MR. PISANELLI:  No.

19           THE COURT:  All right.  My next topic listed on mine

20 is depos of IT folks, depos of Jacobs, requests for

21 productions of documents.

22 MR. PISANELLI:  That's my actual -- that was the

23 question I had for you.  While we are doing this process I'd

24 like to be productive, right.  I'm going to have an argument

25 coming our way about whether we have an entitlement to any of
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1 them.  We're going to have that big global debate again.  And

2 so I would like to conduct discovery and take Ms. Glaser up on

3 her offer of their IT folks and find out what exactly they

4 know about what they've been doing, et cetera, et cetera, et

5 cetera.

6           THE COURT:  Okay.  Since we are stayed and limited

7 to purely discovery related to this jurisdictional issue which

8 the Supreme Court has given me a writ ordering me to do

9 certain things, I am not going to compel what would typically

10 be Rule 16 disclosures related to that.  I am going to require

11 you to serve an interrogatory to identify those folks, or,

12 alternatively, you may identify them through a 30(b)(6)

13 deposition notice.

14 MR. PISANELLI:  Will do.

15           THE COURT:  Next?

16 MR. PEEK:  Well, similarly, Your Honor, there's the

17 corresponding -- I don't know whether Las Vegas Sands is

18 entitled to be involved in this process, because --

19           THE COURT:  I'm not clear, either.

20 MR. PEEK:  Yeah.  But certainly I'll speak for Las

21 Vegas Sands, and Ms. Glaser can speak for herself, and it may

22 get to the same point, is that we would want to take the

23 deposition of Mr. Jacobs for that discrete subject matter

24 related to when he -- what he came into possession, how he

25 came into possession of it, when he came into possession of
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1 it, what he did with it, where did it get stored, what thumb

2 drive.

3           THE COURT:  How about I say it this way?  I believe

4 Mr. Jacobs should be deposed if you think it's appropriate, or

5 Ms. Glaser did, related to all issues that are the subject of

6 the issues that are currently not stayed, rather than deposing

7 him on four separate occasions on sub issues.  And that would

8 be the same for every witness.  I would prefer to have each

9 individual not inconvenienced overly and to try and

10 consolidate all of the issues for their deposition at one

11 time, because it's just polite and well-mannered practice.

12 MR. PEEK:  The only reason I would -- I would agree

13 with that under normal circumstances.  Why I have a little bit

14 of a concern here is that the issue of a substantive

15 deposition of Mr. Jacobs on jurisdiction would normally follow

16 after the review of all of the documents.  One would want, I

17 think perhaps -- and I'm not saying this is what Ms. Glaser

18 will do -- that the issues of how he came into possession of

19 those might be taken -- or learned or discovered earlier than

20 that substantive deposition.  And I'm not trying to take two

21 depositions.  I agree with the Court.  I don't want to

22 inconvenience Mr. Jacobs.  But we'll --

23           THE COURT:  I understand what you're saying, but I

24 really don't think Mr. Jacobs's testimony is relevant to the

25 privileges that are going to be asserted after those folks 
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1 review the 11 gigs or so of documents.  There's going to be

2 somebody who says that the document violates the Macau Privacy

3 Act by it being removed from Macau, there's going to be an

4 objection that says it might be attorney work product, there

5 might be an objection that says it's an accountant-client

6 privilege, it might be an attorney-client privilege, or it

7 might be a trade secret.  I think that's the entire universe

8 of --

9 MR. PEEK:  No.  There's one more, Your Honor.

10           THE COURT:  What is it?

11 MR. PEEK:  You came into the possession of them

12 wrongfully.

13           THE COURT:  That's the broader issue.

14 MR. PEEK:  That's the broader issue, and it's

15 certainly --

16           THE COURT:  I am merely at this point in time on the

17 11 gigs looking for the privilege issues.

18 MR. PEEK:  Correct.  But in order to get to that

19 last, much broader issue of did you come into possession of

20 them in a manner that I don't consider proper, that would be

21 the subject of, as I said, how, when, what, where did you get

22 -- come into the possession.

23           THE COURT:  I am not seeing -- that discussion,

24 which I certainly understand we will have, I do not see that

25 at the same time as my decision on the what I'm characterizing
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1 as privilege issues.  You understand what I'm saying?

2 MR. PEEK:  I do.  I do.

3           THE COURT:  I intend to resolve the privilege issues

4 first, and then I know you're going to argue that there's a

5 lot more that aren't on that list that you claim he shouldn't

6 have.

7 MR. PEEK:  Correct.

8           THE COURT:  And we're going to have a discussion

9 about it after you take his depo.

10 MR. PEEK:  Okay.  After I take his depo.

11 MS. GLASER:  So, if I'm understanding Your Honor,

12 because this is important to us, we obviously have to depose

13 him on all the privilege issues, but we also have to depose

14 him on jurisdictional issues, not just privilege issues.

15           THE COURT:  You don't have to.  You can.

16 MS. GLASER:  But we -- yes.  But, Your Honor, we are

17 -- he's taken the position that he's not subject to our

18 confidentiality and return document --

19           THE COURT:  He is taking that position.

20 MS. GLASER:  Yeah.  I heard that loud and clear,

21 read it loud and clear.  We need to --

22           THE COURT:  That doesn't mean he's right.

23 MS. GLASER:  I understand that.

24           THE COURT:  It's a factual issue I will make a

25 determination on at some point in time.
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1 MS. GLASER:  That's one issue that is pre before you 

2 get to the evidentiary hearing on jurisdiction.

3           THE COURT:  Absolutely.  I will make that

4 determination I assume when you renew your motion in limine

5 after having a conference under 2.47 and after you've taken

6 his deposition and after I've ruled on the privilege issues.

7 MS. GLASER:  I have memorized now -- if I haven't, I

8 will memorize 2.47.

9           THE COURT:  You should read the whole bunch of local

10 rules.  Some of them will actually amuse you, because they're

11 funny.

12 MS. GLASER:  Last thing, the two issues that sort of

13 pre -- are before Your Honor determines jurisdiction are going

14 to be his claim that he's not subject to the policies, which

15 we've just articulated, and, two, how he came into possession

16 of what we believe to be greater than 11 gigabytes of

17 documents.  I'm not saying that that deposition -- I haven't

18 thought it through, honestly, but there can be all one

19 deposition, but it might be two.  And we're going to try as

20 best we can not to inconvenience Mr. Jacobs for sake of

21 inconvenience, because it inconveniences everyone.

22           THE COURT:  How's this?  I bet if you ask for -- if

23 you don't to it all in the first depo, you're going to get a

24 fight on whether you get the second depo.  So I'd be really

25 careful.
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1 MS. GLASER:  I'm not -- I'm not arguing with you. 

2 We're going to think that through carefully.

3           THE COURT:  Okay.  Here's what I'm trying to make

4 sure we all understand.  There's going to be an ESI

5 production, there's going to be an ESI search, there's going

6 to be reviews of documents that are separate and apart,

7 there's going to be a ruling on any privilege issues related

8 to particular documents, you're going to take depositions,

9 some may be going on during this process, some may occur after

10 the process.  You are then going to, if you want, file a

11 motion in limine again to prevent the use of the documents at

12 the evidentiary hearing.  But we will now have a framework

13 which I had hoped we would be able to have through a different

14 process than we're doing now on which documents would be used

15 at the evidentiary hearing.  Does that make sense?

16 MS. GLASER:  It totally makes sense.  And it's

17 appreciated.  And I, for one, would represent to the Court and

18 to Mr. Pisanelli that I'm hopeful that we can work things out. 

19 I don't want to be in a position, nor do I think he does, of

20 me being concerned that he's not -- he's saying one thing to

21 the Court and one thing to me and vice versa.  And we hope to

22 avoid that at all costs, and I'm sure I can speak for both of

23 us in that regard, Your Honor.

24           THE COURT:  I certainly hope I don't get in the

25 middle of those things.
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1 Anything else you want to tell me, Mr. Peek?

2 MR. PEEK:  The only thing I have, Your Honor, is

3 that the hearings for next week --

4           THE COURT:  On October 18th at 9:00 a.m., motion for

5 leave to file an amended counterclaim, motion for protective

6 order, and motion to compel.  The last two probably are

7 premature, but I'm happy to deal with them if you want, and

8 I'll --

9 MR. PEEK:  I think that those were all --

10           THE COURT:  -- probably say they're premature.

11 MR. PEEK:  -- those are all the ones that the Court

12 asked us to withdraw.

13           THE COURT:  Are they?

14 MR. PEEK:  Yes.

15           THE COURT:  Are you going to file an amended

16 counterclaim, though?

17 MR. PEEK:  I would love to.  But I -- but that was

18 one of the motions that you said to us that we couldn't go

19 forward on that.

20           THE COURT:  I can't rule on that.  I can't rule on

21 it.  I'm stayed.

22 MR. PEEK:  Right.  So you asked us to withdraw those

23 motions.  So the fact that there's a hearing still on calendar

24 for those withdrawn motions --

25           THE COURT:  Can you vacate those hearings.
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1           THE CLERK:  I can do that, Judge.

2 MR. PEEK:  And I think we've actually done that,

3 Your Honor, by a pleading.

4           THE COURT:  But the Clerk's Office doesn't vacate

5 them.  I have to tell them.

6 MR. PEEK:  I know.  So I wanted to just have it here

7 clear that --

8           THE COURT:  All right.

9 MR. PEEK:  -- those are the ones you asked us to

10 withdraw and we did withdraw.

11           THE COURT:  What else can I do to help you, since I

12 am now through my four agenda items and it's 11:25?

13 MR. PISANELLI:  I feel -- I feel compelled only to

14 make a reservation on the record, you don't have to rule on

15 it, that if the decision after thought, as we heard, is to

16 depose Mr. Jacobs before we have gotten through this ESI

17 exchange and before I can and will go through and start

18 studying it myself, I will reserve the right to come back to

19 you for a protective order, because I do I think it --

20           THE COURT:  Sure.  I'm not stopping anybody --

21 MR. PISANELLI:  -- will be inherently unfair to have

22 him deposed --

23           THE COURT:  -- from filing motions for protective

24 order or anything.  I assume you will file whatever is

25 appropriate if you think it's appropriate.  I just have a
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1 general policy that it is appreciated by witnesses to only

2 have to be deposed once.  And if you can finish him in one

3 sitting, great.  If it takes more than one sitting and you're

4 doing your best and not harassing him, okay, we all understand

5 and we try and work together.

6 I also really like it when counsel can work

7 together, although I know that doesn't always happen.

8 Anything else?

9 MR. PEEK:  I was just going to say we agree with Mr.

10 Pisanelli that we all are going to reserve whatever we have. 

11 So it goes without saying.  We'll work on this.

12 MS. GLASER:  Thank you for your time, Your Honor.

13           THE COURT:  Anything else?

14 MR. PISANELLI:  Nope.

15           THE COURT:  All right.

16 (Off-record colloquy)

17 THE PROCEEDINGS CONCLUDED AT 11:27 A.M.

18 * * * * *

19

20

21

22

23

24

25
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1 to say, well, he was the chairman of Sands China --

2           THE COURT:  Okay.  Let me answer the question very

3 directly.

4 MR. PISANELLI:  Yes.

5           THE COURT:  Since Mr. Leven and Mr. Adelson both

6 have titles as officers or directors Sands China, you're going

7 to ask them about the work that they did for Sands China.  If

8 they did any work on behalf of Sands China while they were

9 acting as employees or officers or directors of Las Vegas

10 Sands, that is also fair game.  However, you are not going to

11 ask them about their daily activities in conjunction with Las

12 Vegas Sands.

13 MR. PEEK:  And it's during the relevant time period

14 of --

15           THE COURT:  Yes.

16 MR. PEEK:  -- January 1 through October of 2010.

17           THE COURT:  January 1, '09, through October -- yes.

18 MR. PEEK:  Okay.

19 MS. GLASER:  And, Your Honor, we will -- I apologize

20 for the clarification, but I need to say it.

21           THE COURT:  I'm here.

22 MS. GLASER:  In connection with their supervisory

23 roles.  That's what the law says, I'm not making it up.

24           THE COURT:  No, I understand.

25 MS. GLASER:  And if they were performing -- their
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1 hat was in a supervisory role wearing a Las Vegas Sands hat,

2 whether it touched on Sands China or not is irrelevant.

3           THE COURT:  Ms. Glaser, you would have a better

4 argument if they were only serving as a director.  Once they

5 have a title of the CEO or the chairman of the board, that

6 makes it a much more difficult argument for you to make, in my

7 opinion.  But that is a factual determination that I will make

8 after hearing the evidence at the time of the evidentiary

9 hearing.

10 MS. GLASER:  Your Honor --

11           THE COURT:  The reason I made a determination

12 earlier that there were pervasive contacts -- and what I said

13 was there pervasive contacts with the state of Nevada by

14 activities done in Nevada by board members of Sands China.

15 MS. GLASER:  Understood.

16           THE COURT:  I was not referring to activities of Las

17 Vegas Sands employees.

18 MS. GLASER:  I know you weren't.

19           THE COURT:  I was very specific about what I was

20 saying.

21 MS. GLASER:  I know you weren't.  But the activities

22 that you heard about were in their capacity as supervisory

23 activities.

24           THE COURT:  I understand that's your position.  That

25 is a factual determination I will make at the time of the
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1 evidentiary hearing.

2 MS. GLASER:  One question.  Then I will sit down. 

3 Does Your Honor have a procedure -- I ask out of ignorance, so

4 forgive me --

5           THE COURT:  No.  Please.

6 MS. GLASER:  -- with respect to discovery if we get

7 into I'll call them --

8           THE COURT:  You have two issues.  If you're in a

9 depo and you have an issue, you call and I try and take a

10 break from my trial or reschedule the time.

11 MS. GLASER:  That's what I'm asking.

12           THE COURT:  If it is something that is more

13 substantive, like you have discovered there's all this

14 privileged issue that you think Mr. Pisanelli is going to go

15 into, you can file a motion for protective order on an order

16 shortening time, and I'll try and get it done on three days'

17 notice.

18 MS. GLASER:  I appreciate it.  Thank you.

19           THE COURT:  Those are the two best options.

20 MS. GLASER:  Thank you, Your Honor.

21           THE COURT:  Or sometimes what people do is you

22 realize you've got a discovery dispute and you're all going to

23 be down here at the courthouse on something else, so you ask

24 if you can come in at whatever time, and we all talk.

25 MS. GLASER:  Understood.
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1 MR. PISANELLI:  Your Honor, I just --

2           THE COURT:  There's a number of different ways to

3 get here.

4 MR. PISANELLI:  Your Honor, I just missed on your

5 notes.  On Items 9 and 10 did you say yes?  I thought you said

6 yes, but I --

7           THE COURT:  You're going to make me get -- hold on,

8 hold on.

9 MR. PISANELLI:  I don't want to overreach.

10           THE COURT:  9 I said yes, and I believe I said yes

11 on 10.

12 MR. PISANELLI:  Okay.  Now, the only other issue I

13 have for you is after I asked for those depositions we

14 received their witness and exhibit list, which experts.  And

15 so if they're going to put -- you're going to allow them to

16 put experts, I think in all fairness I should not only get a

17 report from this expert before they show up in this courtroom,

18 but be allowed to examine them under oath.

19           THE COURT:  I have never before had an expert on a

20 jurisdictional hearing.

21 MR. PISANELLI:  Neither have I.

22           THE COURT:  That doesn't mean I won't entertain it. 

23 But I need to have some more information before I can make

24 that determination.

25 MS. GLASER:  Your Honor, I think you'll --
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1           THE COURT:  I didn't say yes or no.   I said I need

2 more information.

3 MS. GLASER:  Glad to provide it.

4           THE COURT:  So how am I going to get that more

5 information?

6 MS. GLASER:  We'll provide you -- let me do this. 

7 First of all, I don't think the disclosures have been provided

8 to Your Honor because I think we were just supposed to

9 exchange them.

10           THE COURT:  I don't want the disclosures.

11 MS. GLASER:  But that's more information.

12           THE COURT:  All right.  So, Mr. Pisanelli, you have

13 two options.  You can tell me you're going to file a motion to

14 exclude the expert that Ms. Glaser thinks she wants to use, or

15 alternatively to let you do stuff related to the expert.  And

16 I think that's probably the best, if Ms. Spinelli can spend a

17 few minutes doing that.

18 MR. PISANELLI:  Can I pick both?

19           THE COURT:  I usually make -- I usually make you

20 pick one or the other.

21 MR. PISANELLI:  If I depose them, then that means

22 they get to take the stand?

23           THE COURT:  That doesn't mean I'm going to think

24 they're credible or I think they're important, but I will

25 listen to them.
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1 MS. GLASER:  Thank you, Your Honor.

2           THE COURT:  And sometimes even though you think

3 you're winning on the not getting him to testify, I'll say,

4 you know what, you're right, but I'm still going to make you

5 take a depo and listen to him.

6 MR. PEEK:  Your Honor --

7 MR. PISANELLI:  Does this mean if I want

8 information, Your Honor, I'm getting a report as we would

9 normally, and I'll depose him?

10           THE COURT:  There is a requirement in Nevada on how

11 you are going to disclose expert information.  It can either

12 be by report or by the other method that the rule dictates.

13 MR. PEEK:  Your Honor --

14 MR. PISANELLI:  Thank you, Your Honor.

15           THE COURT:  Mr. Peek, it's so nice to see you.

16 Mr. Pisanelli, I did not get a competing order from

17 you on the interim order.  Will you have it to me tomorrow so

18 I can sign one way or the other.

19 MR. PISANELLI:  Yes.  Yes, we will.  Thank you.

20           THE COURT:  By noon.

21 MR. PISANELLI:  Yes.

22 MR. PEEK:  And we --

23           THE COURT:  Mr. Peek.

24 MR. PEEK:  You know, I've been in trial, so I

25 haven't had a chance to even look at what he wants, because he
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1 did send me something to take a look at.

2           THE COURT:  I don't know.

3 MR. PEEK:  So I'll take a look at it and get back to

4 Jim.

5           THE COURT:  I know that my former law clerk, Brian

6 Anderson, sent me a letter saying that he wanted me to sign

7 this, but Pisanelli had a different version and I haven't seen

8 it.

9 MR. PEEK:  I haven't, either.

10 Your Honor, just a quick question.  I know everybody

11 wants to leave here.  But the hearing Tuesday is at 9:00,

12 9:30, 10:00, 10:30, 1:00 o'clock?

13           THE COURT:  What hearing Tuesday?

14 MR. PEEK:  On my motion for sanctions of the interim

15 -- the interim order.

16           THE COURT:  That's on 9:00 o'clock, Steve.

17 MR. PEEK:  9:00 o'clock.

18 MS. GLASER:  Thank you.

19           THE COURT:  And I signed the OST.  You meed to file

20 and serve.

21 MR. PEEK:  It got brought out without me knowing it.

22           THE COURT:  I took care of it all.  I'm on the ball.

23 (Off-record colloquy)

24           THE COURT:  Have a nice evening, everyone.

25 THE PROCEEDINGS CONCLUDED AT 5:10 P.M.
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1 invitation to depose her IT personnel.

2           THE COURT:  I'm not there yet.  That's Item 4 on my

3 agenda.

4 All right.  Let's go to your motion for

5 clarification.  And I apologize the other day for vacating a

6 hearing without you present, Ms. Glaser.  But it became

7 apparent during our hearing that there was no way we were

8 going to be able to be ready, given the issues that had to be

9 accomplished and the position the Nevada Supreme Court took

10 with respect to the extraordinary relief that I instructed Mr.

11 Peek's firm to accomplish.

12 MS. GLASER:  I have to say, Your Honor, I have never

13 had a judge be as candid as you have been with respect to

14 that.  And it is not lost on me, and it's very much

15 appreciated.  So thank you for that.

16           THE COURT:  But I apologize, because Mr. Ma was

17 here, so I took the opportunity to have him come up to

18 participate and then let him go back while I dealt with the

19 other case so you weren't making an affirmative appearance in

20 that case.

21 MS. GLASER:  Not a problem.  Thank you.

22           THE COURT:  All right.  Now we're on your motion for

23 clarification.

24 MS. GLASER:  Your Honor, I don't think anything

25 speaks better about why we need a clarification than the
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1 opposition to the motion for clarification.  Your Honor may

2 recall, and we keep harping on this, there were two things in

3 the reply papers -- excuse me, the opposition papers that in

4 our view are simply wrong.  We've been up to the Nevada

5 Supreme Court and -- as Your Honor well knows, and in -- I

6 want to just address -- I want to address two points.  Your

7 Honor will recall that in the opposition they talk about, hey,

8 we get discovery with respect to specific jurisdiction.  And I

9 want to remind the Court of three things.  In their answer in

10 the Nevada Supreme Court with respect to what was before the

11 Nevada Supreme Court and what had been before Your Honor on

12 the motion to dismiss Mr. Jacobs says, and I'm quoting from

13 page 1 of his brief -- this is the answer in the Nevada

14 Supreme Court, "Jacobs asserted two grounds for personal

15 jurisdiction -- 'transient' and 'general' jurisdiction,"

16 number one.

17 Number two, on plaintiff's motion to conduct

18 jurisdictional discovery the first page of the motion, "Jacobs

19 has already shown this Court that there is more than good

20 reason to believe that Sands China is subject to general

21 jurisdiction here."

22 Third, the order granting petition for writ of

23 mandamus from the Nevada Supreme Court, if you go, Your Honor,

24 to the third page, this court says, "We therefore direct the

25 District Court to revisit the issue of personal jurisdiction
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1 over petitioner by holding an evidentiary hearing and issuing

2 findings regarding general jurisdiction."  There is no

3 reference to specific because it was dropped by prior counsel. 

4 The court didn't have it to review, the court didn't consider

5 it, and the court didn't order an evidentiary hearing in

6 connection with it.  So that's number one.

7 Then for the first time -- actually, it's not the

8 first time.  It was raised in oral argument when we were last

9 before Your Honor.  There's now suddenly a theory apparently

10 attributable to general jurisdiction that talks about agency. 

11 And I want to address agency for a moment.  Because, again,

12 that's why the discovery is too broad, in our view, and why it

13 needs --

14           THE COURT:  Are you referring to the quote I gave

15 from the transcript of the original motion to dismiss, or are

16 you referring to something else?

17 MS. GLASER:  With respect to what I just said?

18           THE COURT:  The agency issue.  The new issue that

19 you're talking about.  I as part of our hearing recently went

20 back and read part of the transcript during our hearing about

21 what my finding really was --

22 MS. GLASER:  Correct.

23           THE COURT:  -- related to the board members.

24 MS. GLASER:  Yes.  Yes.

25           THE COURT:  Okay.  I just want to make sure that --
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1 that's always been an issue to me.

2 MS. GLASER:  Okay.  And I want to address that.

3           THE COURT:  Okay.

4 MS. GLASER:  Thank you for asking the question.

5 What is said at page 17 of its opposition to the

6 motion to dismiss, "Mr. Jacobs," I'm quoting, "seeks to

7 establish jurisdiction over SCL based on SCL's contacts with

8 the forum --" it goes on to say, and Counsel tries to take

9 advantage of this "-- not just those attributable to Las Vegas

10 Sands Corporation."

11 In the answer to the petition, in their answer to

12 the petition at page 5, and I'm quoting, "SCL is subject to

13 personal jurisdiction based on its own," based on its own,

14 "contacts with Nevada."  That's their -- that's the position

15 that they presented to Your Honor, and that's what went up to

16 the Nevada Supreme Court, not any so-called agency theory. 

17 And by agency, just so we're not oblique here, they're

18 essentially saying that -- I guess that Las Vegas Sands acted

19 as -- or an officer or director acted as an agent for Sands

20 China in connection with actions taken in Nevada.  I guess

21 that's the theory.  And what we're saying is that wasn't

22 briefed, it wasn't the position they took before Your Honor on

23 the motion to dismiss, and it certainly wasn't reviewed by the

24 Nevada Supreme Court when they issued their writ.

25 Now, they have acknowledged that they are not
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1 alleging personal jurisdiction over SCL by virtue of any

2 conduct of SCL's parent, LVSC.  Now -- and again I'm quoting

3 from the -- from the answer, "As Jacobs explicitly stated to

4 the District Court, he never sought to drag SCL into Nevada on

5 LVSC's coattails.  Instead, he asserted personal jurisdiction

6 over SCL based on SCL's own contacts," own contacts, "with

7 Nevada.  SCL is subject to personal jurisdiction based on its

8 own contacts with Nevada.  For purposes of this dispute the

9 affiliation between SCL and LVSC is the reddest of herrings."

10 That's where we start.  I believe it's quite clear

11 that that's a new theory.  But, in any event, we're not here

12 to reargue.  We obviously respectfully disagree, but we're not

13 here to reargue discovery.  That ship has sailed.  What we're

14 saying is that you don't need to take Mr. Kay's deposition,

15 and we outlined, I thought quite well, but perhaps not, why

16 that was inappropriate.  Mr. Kay was the CFO and executive

17 vice president of Las Vegas Sands.  I don't know if Your Honor

18 remembers, and I'm -- and I'm not going to correctly quote

19 you, but Your Honor was -- when we had this discovery issue

20 before Your Honor on whether there should be discovery or not

21 you were talking about, look -- you said it perhaps nicer

22 than --

23           THE COURT:  It's on page 43 of the transcript.

24 MS. GLASER:  You were a little nicer than I'm saying

25 it now, but you said, look, they have a title here that they

LVSC/SCL0188



50

1 are chairman of Las Vegas Sands and chairman of Sands China. 

2 And then you went on to -- and Mr. Leven, no question, was a

3 special consultant to the board of Sands China, and he's also

4 an officer of Las Vegas Sands.  And that was significant.  And

5 I'm not -- whether I agree or disagree, Your Honor was quite

6 clear about that.  I'm distinguishing, Mr. Goldstein, who's

7 the president of Global Gaming at Las Vegas Sands Corporation,

8 and he's been that since January 1, 2011.  He's also executive

9 vice president, and he had a prior management position with

10 Las Vegas Sands, not with Sands China.  Never an officer or

11 director of Sands China, period.  Mr. Kay is the CFO and

12 executive vice president of Las Vegas Sands China [sic] since

13 December 1, 2008.  He's never been employed by anybody

14 connected with Sands, anybody before that date.  And he has

15 always been an officer of Las Vegas Sands Corporation, never

16 of Sands China.

17 So if you go to, for example, the next point, the

18 Request Number 15, that is, quote, "Services performed by Las

19 Vegas Sands on behalf of Sands China --"  I think I'm directly

20 quoting or something close to that, "-- regard site

21 development, recruiting of executives, marketing Sands China's

22 properties, negotiation of the joint venture with Harrah's,

23 negotiation of Macau real estate to Stanley Ho."  Your Honor,

24 just too broad if you're considering general jurisdiction, the

25 contacts that Sands China through its representatives has
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1 here, whether that is sufficiently pervasive to justify the

2 Court exercising jurisdiction over Sands China.

3 Request Number 18, "Reimbursement to Las Vegas Sands

4 China's executives for work related to Sands China."  Again,

5 we don't -- we have always taken the position, and it's a

6 matter of public record, Las Vegas Sands owns 70 percent of

7 Sands China has, period.  We've also emphasized to the Court

8 it's a separate Hong Kong entity on the Hong Kong Stock

9 Exchange, and no question it's required to be independent. 

10 They don't have bank accounts here, et cetera.  We went

11 through all this.  I won't bore you with that again.

12 What we're asking the Court to clarify quite

13 clearly, and, frankly, we were accused of -- this actually

14 being a motion for consideration.  I think there's nothing

15 more obvious than a reconsideration when now we're being told

16 that you're supposed to allow discovery with respect to

17 specific jurisdiction, which was clearly not the position and

18 not what was ordered by the Nevada Supreme Court.  That's

19 reconsideration.  But having said that, we're not -- we're

20 simply trying to demonstrate to the Court that specific

21 jurisdiction clearly is out.  Agency was not addressed before

22 Your Honor, nor was it addressed in the Nevada Supreme Court,

23 and we think that one's out, and therefore the limitations on

24 the categories and the people being deposed ought to be more

25 significant than it is right now.
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1           THE COURT:  Thank you.

2 Mr. Pisanelli.

3 MR. PISANELLI:  Here we go again.  Motion for

4 clarification.  I'm assuming underlying the word

5 "clarification" is Ms. Glaser's concession that she's

6 confused.

7 Now, what she did just tell you in relation to our

8 position I guess is that she was confused that there were a

9 longer list of grounds for hauling Sands China into court here

10 than she had realized at that hearing.  Or is she confused

11 that we actually were quite crystal clear about our position

12 at the hearing but later went back and took a word or two out

13 of context and said because an argument was being made about

14 general jurisdiction everything else was eliminated?  For

15 instance, Your Honor, never had to get to transient

16 jurisdiction.  Neither did the Supreme Court.  But neither

17 Your Honor nor the Supreme Court ever said transient

18 jurisdiction's off the table.  She tried that one and lost

19 that one before.

20 So, you know, all I ask on this topic is just let's

21 be forthright here, right.  I didn't throw out any procedural

22 hurdles, I didn't say that there's time limits that were

23 missed in our opposition.  I just said, let's just please be

24 honest with each other, there's no confusion, there's no

25 confusion as to whether Mr. Kay gets to be deposed or not. 
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1 She knew what your order was.  She even sought clarification

2 at the hearing.  There's no confusion, there's no

3 clarification needed here.

4 If she wants me to say it again, I'll say it again. 

5 If she wants to hear the different theories we have of why

6 this company is subject to personal jurisdiction, I'll say

7 them again.  General jurisdiction based upon Sands China's

8 contacts with Nevada.  General jurisdiction based upon the

9 agency role that LVSC played on behalf of Sands China.  And

10 I'm sure it's not lost on Ms. Glaser that agency goes along

11 with subagency.  We're not here to have a debate over form

12 over substance, we're here to figure out whether Sands China

13 had contacts with Nevada, its agents, that were performing

14 services for Sands China in Nevada that Sands China otherwise

15 would have had to perform for themselves.  That's what the

16 Ninth Circuit told us to do, that's what the Ninth Circuit

17 says is the question to be asked, not form over substance. 

18 Doesn't say, well, was the agent from LVSC -- did it have a

19 title in performing those agency functions.  No.  Neither did

20 Your Honor.  The only party that comes forward saying that

21 agency goes hand in hand with title is Ms. Glaser.

22 Agency has nothing to do with title.  Matter of

23 fact, Sands China can have agents in Nevada working on its

24 behalf which would be minimum contacts that would be taken

25 into consideration for purposes of personal jurisdiction even
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1 if they don't work for LVSC.  It doesn't matter whether

2 Sheldon Adelson had one or two titles.  It's certainly an

3 issue for you to consider of what his role was, but it doesn't

4 matter whether he could or could not have been acting as an

5 agent.

6 Same thing with Mr. Kay.  We know what he was doing. 

7 We've already had this debate.  This isn't clarification. 

8 This is reconsideration.  They know what Mr. Kay does.  He was

9 in charge of the financing, financing which occurred in

10 Nevada, financing for Sands China that was negotiated and

11 executed here on Las Vegas Boulevard with the agent of Sands

12 China, Mr. Kay. 

13 Same thing with Rob Goldstein.  The issues are

14 identical.  It doesn't matter if he has a title, and Ms.

15 Glaser has never been confused about that topic.  I'm certain

16 she wasn't confused.

17 To somehow run from specific jurisdiction also is an

18 odd position to take that that is off the table of whether

19 Sands China had contacts with Nevada relating to the actual

20 wrongful termination of Mr. Jacobs, whether Mr. Adelson, the

21 person who by all measures from everything we've seen made the

22 decision to terminate Mr. Jacobs, made the instruction to tell

23 Mr. Leven to give him an ultimatum, give him a half hour to

24 decide whether he will quit or be terminated and have him

25 escorted to the border.  That decision, she says, shouldn't
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1 come before you despite that that decision occurred here on

2 Las Vegas Boulevard, despite that that's where those

3 instructions came from, that's too specific and we shouldn't

4 have anything to do with it.

5 And I won't be redundant on her attempts to run from

6 the transient jurisdiction, which really could and very well

7 may at the end of the day be more important than all of this

8 other stuff that we're going to debate.  The bottom line is

9 they're not confused about anything.

10 Now, she also claims to be confused about the dates

11 for the discovery that you told us about, although she hasn't

12 really touched upon it much, if at all, in oral argument. 

13 What's that confusion about?  Your Honor rightly put the end

14 date at the filing of the complaint.  And a theory that I just

15 can't understand where it comes from and what authority

16 supports it, Ms. Glaser would have you pull the discovery back

17 to the time of termination despite that virtually every case

18 which talks about -- either at the United States Supreme Court

19 or at the State Court levels, any case that talks about this

20 issue says over and over and over that the filing of the

21 complaint is relevant for purposes of determining contacts

22 with the state on a jurisdictional purpose -- or basis, and

23 she wants to tell you, no, no, no, no, let's just have it when

24 Steve Jacobs was terminated.  And why does she say that, Your

25 Honor?  Because she knows that Mike Leven took over the
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1 position as president and CEO, she knows that he was running

2 the company from Las Vegas Boulevard here in Nevada, the

3 Venetian's headquarters, and she doesn't want the evidence to

4 come in about those very substantial contacts.  Why else would

5 she say, no, let's push it back to the date of his

6 termination?

7 There's no confusion.  She's not confused what you

8 said.  There wasn't new evidence, wasn't new law, there's no

9 confusion.  It's a request for a do over, telling you you got

10 it wrong.  That's all it is, you got it wrong, Judge.

11 Same thing, she says, on the start date, that it

12 should be from the IPO.  What?  The IPO, because it could not

13 logically without money have been doing anything.  Well, how

14 about some evidence about that?  I think we're going to find

15 that it had lots and lots and lots going on, lots of contracts

16 were being put in place for its benefit or even being executed

17 on its own.  And this concept that we shouldn't -- we should

18 turn a blind eye and again have a fictitious debate over what

19 happened by turning our head against relevant evidence during

20 a time period for reasons -- I don't know, public policy?  I

21 can't even think of what the logic would be to intentionally

22 turn our back on evidence and start at the IPO, rather than

23 sometime earlier when Sands China, either in its official

24 capacity or its predecessor entities or its promoters, the

25 people that were creating it, were actually having contact
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1 with Nevada.

2 The long and short of it is this, Your Honor.  You

3 already decided all these things.  And I don't need to rest on

4 that simple issue, Bob, I don't need to rest on the simple

5 issue that you've already decided, though I could.  The issue

6 is you decided it because you thought about it and you

7 considered the debate and you considered the arguments and you

8 considered the evidence and the law.  That's why we shouldn't

9 change this whatsoever.  Sands China was not thought up as an

10 afterthought.

11           THE COURT:  You agree, though, that if I think I was

12 wrong I should change it?

13 MR. PISANELLI:  Well, that depends if you're right

14 about being wrong.  So we'll have to see exactly what it is

15 that you're talking about.

16 MR. PEEK:  That's a good concession, Jim.

17 MR. PISANELLI:  But if there is an issue that you're

18 considering, I'd be happy to address it.  But I just don't see

19 it, Your Honor.  The only argument -- I'll be frank with you. 

20 I think the only argument even worthy of discussion, though it

21 is not clarification, it is indeed still a motion for a

22 reconsideration, is whether we should go pre incorporation on

23 Sands China.  They say that, you know, we're going to have an

24 argument about contacts Sands China had before its

25 organizational documents were filed in the Cayman Islands. 
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1 And I would suggest to Your Honor -- again, I'll concede that

2 at least that's a fair debate.  But it shouldn't -- you

3 shouldn't change it.  We should go back to January 1st for a

4 few reasons.  One, they've already stipulated to that window. 

5 I think she forgot about that when they filed this opposition. 

6 That's a window they've already stipulated to.

7 And secondly, and it was the last point I was going

8 to make, that is it is a fiction to say that in an

9 organization of complexity that LVSC is that Sands China was

10 an afterthought that came about in a spur of the moment and

11 there really was nothing going on pre incorporation -- and by

12 incorporation we're talking about filing of documents.  This

13 army of lawyers and accountants and executives were doing a

14 lot.  They were doing a lot in Nevada for the benefit of that

15 entity and for the benefit of the preexisting entities that

16 would become Sands China.  And we're entitled to analyze to

17 see whether it actually was an entity that had its name

18 changed, was merged into another one.  We're entitled to

19 analyze to see if it was, as they claim now, a brand-new

20 entity that had no contacts with anything.  If that latter

21 conclusion is found, then the discovery's going to be easy,

22 won't it.  You don't have any contacts, it didn't have

23 anything that was going on in Nevada, it didn't have any

24 business dealings that were occurring, well, then the

25 discovery's going to be pretty simple.
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1 I don't think that's true, and that's why I ask Your

2 Honor -- we're not talking about relevance, we're not talking

3 about admissibility, we're talking about discovery, a far

4 broader standard than we should be looking at, before we just

5 close the window and say, no, you don't get to look down that

6 alley.

7           THE COURT:  But it's limited discovery in

8 conjunction with the order -- or, I'm sorry, the writ the

9 Nevada Supreme Court has issued to me.

10 MR. PISANELLI:  Right.

11           THE COURT:  Okay.  We have to be mindful of that,

12 because there is a stay that's in place.  And so I am limited

13 significantly in what might generally be allowed as discovery. 

14 But I think I narrowed it when I did the order --

15 MR. PISANELLI:  As did I.

16           THE COURT:  -- whether you guys like it or not.

17 MR. PISANELLI:  And if there is anything that you

18 have doubt about, about being accurate and fair, all filtered

19 through the fact that we're talking about discovery, not

20 admissibility for purposes of contact, then, of course, I'd be

21 happy to address the point.  But I think we know where we're

22 going.  It is a sham to say we were confused.  Nobody in this

23 room is confused.  We all sought clarification at the moment,

24 and you told us what you wanted --

25           THE COURT:  I even stayed after 5:00 to give you
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1 clarification.

2 MR. PISANELLI:  Right.  You asked all of us, you

3 exhausted all the questions.  There was nobody confused when

4 we walked out of here.

5           THE COURT:  All right.  Ms. Glaser.

6 MS. GLASER:  Your Honor, I don't mean to be too cute

7 about this, but there was no meet and confer with respect to

8 the motion for discovery, and Mr. Pisanelli actually admits

9 that in writing.  He says it wouldn't have mattered anyway

10 because we would never have been able to agree.  So I'm --

11           THE COURT:  Well, you guys told me you wouldn't

12 agree in open court.

13 MS. GLASER:  I'm not --

14 MR. PISANELLI:  And she told me on the telephone, as

15 well.  Perhaps she forgot that.

16           THE COURT:  Well, no.  You told me in open court,

17 which to me is a pretty big deal.  When you guys tell me in

18 open court you're not going to reach an agreement, I say, then

19 I guess you're going to have to file a motion.

20 MS. GLASER:  All I'm saying, Your Honor, is there

21 was a specific effort to meet and confer by us.  Mr. Pisanelli

22 filed his motion with a meet and confer, and I'm just -- I

23 think what's good for the goose is good for the gander in any

24 event.

25           THE COURT:  I'm happy to discuss that with you at
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1 the time of that hearing.  Today we're here on a motion for

2 clarification because you want me to limit the scope of what I

3 ordered beginning on page 43 of the transcript --

4 MS. GLASER:  Right, Your Honor.

5           THE COURT:  -- at the hearing I did on the day at

6 4:00 o'clock because Judge McKibben asked me to because Mr.

7 Peek had to be at his trial.

8 MS. GLASER:  Okay.  And, Your Honor, I want to say

9 it as clearly as I can --

10           THE COURT:  September 27th.

11 MS. GLASER:  -- the best reason for clarification is

12 found in the opposition papers, because the Nevada Supreme

13 Court has limited the jurisdictional evidentiary hearing to

14 general jurisdiction, not specific jurisdiction.  And I won't

15 bore you with quoting from the --

16           THE COURT:  Actually what the Nevada Supreme Court

17 says, just so we're entirely all clear, because I am bound to

18 do what they tell me to when they issue a write --

19 MS. GLASER:  I have it right here, but go ahead.

20           THE COURT:  "Order that petition granted and direct

21 the clerk of this court to issue a writ of mandamus

22 instructing the District Court to hold an evidentiary hearing

23 on personal jurisdiction, to issue findings of fact and

24 conclusions of law stating the basis for its decision

25 following that hearing, and to stay the action as set forth in
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1 this order until after entry of the District Court's personal

2 jurisdiction decision."

3 MS. GLASER:  Your Honor, if you go up 11 lines above

4 that, it clearly says to hold -- "by holding an evidentiary

5 hearing and issuing findings regarding general jurisdiction."

6 Because I'm telling Your Honor, and Your Honor can check the

7 briefs --

8           THE COURT:  I'm not checking the briefs, Ms. Glaser.

9 MS. GLASER:  I understand.  No question --

10           THE COURT:  I'm going with what the Supreme Court

11 told me to do in the writ that they issued.

12 MS. GLASER:  And it says "general jurisdiction," not

13 specific jurisdiction.  Because counsel -- prior counsel,

14 albeit, waived their argument with respect to specific

15 jurisdiction both before Your Honor and again in front of the

16 Nevada Supreme Court.

17           THE COURT:  Anything else?

18 MS. GLASER:  No, there is not, Your Honor.

19           THE COURT:  Thank you.

20 The motion for clarification is granted in part.  I

21 am going to clarify again what I have said repeatedly since

22 this case has been sent back sort of by the Nevada Supreme

23 Court.

24 We are only going to do discovery related to

25 activities that were done for or on behalf of Sands China. 
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1 That was an overriding limitation on all of the specific items

2 that were requested in the motion for discovery.

3 Is there any further clarification that you would

4 like to ask me at this time?  Okay.

5 MS. GLASER:  I would like the Court to be clear that

6 with respect to specific jurisdiction it's a separate analysis

7 that was not before the Nevada Supreme Court.  And by

8 definition not only do they articulate it in their order, but

9 they clearly also say they can't be ordering an evidentiary

10 hearing on issues that weren't before it and there's nothing

11 discussed about specific jurisdiction.

12           THE COURT:  Anything else?

13 MS. GLASER:  I do -- I understand Your Honor's

14 argument, and I think you're not agreeing with me on the

15 agency theory.

16           THE COURT:  I'm going to actually read you the writ,

17 which is much more important than any other document from the

18 Supreme Court.

19 MS. GLASER:  Okay.

20           THE COURT:  The writ says -- and it's directed to

21 me.  This is the second paragraph.  "Now, therefore, you are

22 instructed to hold an evidentiary hearing on personal

23 jurisdiction, to issue findings of fact and conclusions of law

24 stating the basis for your decision following that hearing,

25 and to stay the action as set forth in the order until after
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1 entry of your personal jurisdiction decision, in the case

2 entitled Steve C. Jacobs versus Las Vegas Sands Corp., Case

3 Number A-10-627691-C."  Love and kisses, Nevada Supreme Court.

4 MS. GLASER:  Your Honor, I did properly quote from

5 the order above that.

6           THE COURT:  I know.  But what I'm trying to tell you

7 is what matters more isn't what they say in their opinions,

8 it's what the issue in the writ instructing me what to do. 

9 That's what I have to do.  And I'm going to do it.  And

10 there's going to be a good order this time, instead of a lousy

11 order that goes up, even if I have to draft it myself.

12 All right.  Let's go to Item Number 3 on my agenda,

13 which is --

14 MR. PEEK:  I assume you mean by that your order

15 denying jurisdiction.  Well, I'm just trying to --

16           THE COURT:  Okay.  Let me -- instead of saying "good

17 order," I will say a well-drafted and complete order.  How's

18 that?

19 MR. PEEK:  Yeah.  Because you don't have to

20 necessarily find that there's jurisdiction.

21           THE COURT:  No.

22 MR. PEEK:  Okay.

23           THE COURT:  I have to make a decision following an

24 evidentiary hearing on the issue that a writ has been sent to

25 me saying, you are specifically commanded to do this.  And I
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1 intend to do what they told me to do.

2 MR. PISANELLI:  Quick question on the clarification

3 issue.

4           THE COURT:  Yes.

5 MR. PISANELLI:  It was our understanding when we

6 left this courtroom that we presented to Your Honor categories

7 of discovery that we wanted, you granted many, you tailored

8 some.  We walk out now prepared to receive discovery and start

9 noticing depositions.  I have not had a discussion, so I don't

10 know there's a debate in hand.  But because of the silence

11 we've heard since that last time I'm fearful that they're not

12 intending to comply with that order unless they're receiving

13 formal discovery requests, things of that sort.  And I

14 understood you not to be expecting that.

15           THE COURT:  No, no.  You're going to have to do

16 formal discovery requests.  Don't -- please, let's not assume

17 that just because I said you can do these things --

18 MR. PISANELLI:  Okay.  Fair enough.

19           THE COURT:  -- which is what I said, that that means

20 they have to immediately respond.  They don't.

21 MR. PISANELLI:  But --

22           THE COURT:  You have to do something affirmatively

23 to put them in a position where they get it, which is one of

24 the reasons I vacated the hearing, because there was no way

25 we're ever going to get through it all by the time I had set
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1 aside for November 21st, 22, and 23.

2 MR. PISANELLI:  Well, in that regard do you want us,

3 then -- I'll tell you the reason I thought you were expecting

4 immediate compliance was because of the hearing, 30 days to

5 respond and things of that sort just didn't fit.  And so do

6 you want us to go down that path pursuant to the rules as

7 they're stated with response dates as --

8           THE COURT:  That's Item Number 4 on my agenda.

9 MR. PISANELLI:  Okay.  I'll wait, then.  I'm sorry

10 to interrupt.

11           THE COURT:  I'm on Number 3 right now, which is your

12 ESI protocol.  I understand that there's been a draft of an

13 ESI protocol perhaps circulated.  And, unfortunately, I've not

14 had an opportunity to review the multiple competing drafts of

15 the ESI protocol.  Does anybody want to say anything about it

16 while we're all here together?

17 MR. PISANELLI:  I do, Your Honor --

18 MS. GLASER:  Sure do, Your Honor.  It was our draft,

19 so maybe we should say it.

20 MR. PISANELLI:  -- and I'll tell you what it is that

21 I would like to say.

22           THE COURT:  Okay.  Why don't I let Ms. Glaser start?

23 MR. PISANELLI:  I'll leave Colby Williams's email

24 for her to see so she'll know exactly what it is I'm --

25           THE COURT:  The July email?  The one that -- the
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1 July email that I started with on September 16th?

2 MR. PISANELLI:  That's the one.

3 MS. GLASER:  May I have just one moment, Your Honor?

4           THE COURT:  Sure.  It's really handy, because I've

5 been harping on that particular email now for a month.

6 MS. GLASER:  Well, we've spent a lot -- a lot of

7 time drafting it.

8 (Pause in the proceedings)

9 MS. GLASER:  Your Honor, I actually I think it's --

10 doesn't matter, but it's Exhibit C to one of the 5,000 motions

11 that have been before Your Honor.

12 MR. PEEK:  It's Exhibit C to the reply, Your Honor.

13           THE COURT:  Thank you.

14 MS. GLASER:  It's called "Proposed Document Review

15 Protocol."  And what it literally does is agrees to -- the

16 parties are required to agree to an ESI vendor.  It really

17 takes out of our hands and the other side's hands these

18 documents.  Just so I'm clear, Mr. Peek --

19           THE COURT:  That's the hope.

20 MS. GLASER:  No, it is.  I mean --

21           THE COURT:  I'm just telling you, Ms. Glaser, from

22 past experience it's the hope.

23 MS. GLASER:  Well, you know what --

24           THE COURT:  Sometimes the ESI vendors make mistakes.

25 MS. GLASER:  -- you're scaring me a little bit.  But
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1 okay.  The idea was to pick an ESI vendor we both agreed to,

2 to share the cost 50 percent, 50-50, then what happens is the

3 ESI vendor then Bates-stamp numbers everything, plaintiff's

4 counsel is supposed to provide to the ESI -- the ESI vendor

5 all the documents received by Mr. Jacobs that are in his

6 possession, custody, or control that he obtained.  And I don't

7 we do not want to get into a debate, because we actually put

8 in the protocol "he obtained as an employee of SCL."  We don't

9 care about that.  It's just he obtained as an employee,

10 whether it was VML, SCL, Las Vegas Sands, all those documents

11 of which we all concede are well over 11 gigabytes of

12 documents.  We want all those given to the ESI vendor.  The

13 ESI vendor shall put Bates-stamp numbers on everything so

14 nobody's confused about what was provided, and I mean the

15 originals go, so he doesn't keep anything in his possession,

16 so nobody ever has to worry that somebody is let's just say

17 even inadvertently reviewing trade secret information, more

18 importantly, attorney-client privileged information, and, just

19 as importantly Macau Privacy Act material that should not be

20 reviewed by anybody.

21 After the Bates-stamp numbers are put on, then it's

22 along with searchable -- and I'm a little out of my element,

23 Your Honor, this is above my pay grade, but I'm going to

24 describe what we put in the document, "searchable metadata

25 information where it's available as required to make these
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1 documents reasonably usable."  And then we literally say,

2 okay, this is what you do with emails, author, recipient, cc,

3 bcc, et cetera; this is what you do with other electronic

4 files, file name, file type or extension, et cetera; and for

5 all documents the custodian, the Bates-stamp numbers beginning

6 and the Bates-stamp numbers ending and the family range

7 beginning and the family range ending; and then .tif images

8 are produce in a monochrome, single-page format at 300 dpi

9 resolution with Group 4, blah, blah.  I mean, this is

10 hypertechnical, but it's in an effort to safeguard the

11 documents.  And then what happens is effectively we -- they --

12 the -- we go through the documents, our documents, nobody

13 contends they're not --

14           THE COURT:  Actually the ESI vendor typically runs a

15 search, given search terms.

16 MS. GLASER:  No problem.

17           THE COURT:  You then go through the documents that

18 are identified with issues related to the search terms.  And

19 then, if there are privileged items or other items I have to

20 rule on, that's where we start.

21 MS. GLASER:  That's the way this is set up.  And it

22 still takes into account full briefing, Your Honor, on the

23 issue which we have not conceded and which Your Honor says is

24 -- and it clearly is -- the notion that he shouldn't have had

25 any of the documents to begin with and that the right way to
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1 deal with this is -- it doesn't take them out -- we don't do

2 anything with the documents, because the ESI vendor has them,

3 but it doesn't take away from the issue that Your Honor still

4 gets full briefing on who -- and maybe after discovery, okay

5 with that, too, who is entitled to these documents, is Mr.

6 Jacobs required to give them all back and do what normal

7 plaintiffs do, file requests for production of documents, and

8 not keep, and not have counsel or anybody else, any third

9 party, review documents that don't belong to him.  And the

10 notion if something is privileged and he received it in his

11 capacity as a CEO of the company and it was privileged at the

12 time, he can waive that privilege, that is not true, and

13 that's not the law.  The law is quite clear that it's the

14 company's privilege, not his, and the company does not waive

15 that privilege and never has waived an attorney-client

16 privilege.  Nobody has conceded that, and no one has suggested

17 that.

18 So what this protocol does -- and it's lengthy, but

19 it's intended to be detailed because we put a lot of thought

20 into it, and we are perfectly willing to meet and confer, if

21 we can get that done, with a court reporter present or

22 whatever present, telephone recording, doesn't matter to me,

23 but we need to get this resolved so that the documents

24 generally can be considered by the Court, should they be used

25 or not in connection with evidentiary hearing, and to the
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1 extent that Your Honor somehow disagrees that he doesn't

2 improperly have them and shouldn't return them all, then at

3 least we go document by document and determine what's

4 privileged, what's subject to trade secret, and what is

5 subject to the Macau Privacy Act.

6           THE COURT:  You're going to go through all

7 11 gigabytes?

8 MS. GLASER:  Yes, ma'am, we are.  And we have people

9 set up to do that.

10           THE COURT:  Okay.

11 MR. PEEK:  We think there may be more than

12 11 gigabytes, though, Your Honor.  Because in light of the

13 opposition that we saw from Mr. Pisanelli suggests to me that

14 there's more than 11 gigabytes.  I don't know what it is or

15 not, and I'm not trying to put words in his mouth, but the

16 opposition suggests that there's more than 11 gigabytes.

17 MR. PISANELLI:  I think there is, but I don't know.

18           THE COURT:  Let me ask a question -- let me ask the

19 question more completely.  Is it the intention of Sands China

20 to go through all of the documents that are delivered to the

21 ESI vendor and imaged for you to then review to determine if

22 there is a particular issue and then to provide me with an

23 item-by-item description as to your position?

24 MS. GLASER:  Yes, ma'am, it is.

25           THE COURT:  Okay.
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1 these two lawyers that are throwing these allegations out will

2 read our disclosures and see that they're all public documents

3 or documents that have actually been submitted in this court

4 or a 16.1 production before they start so loosely throwing

5 these allegations out, and maybe they'll withdraw those

6 motions.  If they don't, we'll call them out for all the

7 mistakes they've made in their papers and today, and we'll

8 respond in 10 days.

9           THE COURT:  Okay.  Well, here's my concern with

10 that.  I had an interim order that was in effect for a period

11 of 14 days from the day I issued it.  My order expires on

12 October 4th.  I am looking to schedule a hearing prior to that

13 date.

14 MR. PEEK:  And October 4th is Monday.

15           THE COURT:  No, it's a Tuesday.

16 MR. PEEK:  Tuesday?

17           THE COURT:  It's the Tuesday a week from today.

18 MR. PEEK:  I'm happy to do it on Tuesday, Your

19 Honor.  Mr. Pisanelli and I are together on Monday on another

20 matter, so I'm happy to do it on Tuesday.

21           THE COURT:  Because you guys --

22 MR. PISANELLI:  Well, since we're doing

23 everything --

24           THE COURT:  -- all have cases together.

25 MR. PISANELLI:  Since we're doing everything at
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1 hyperspeed, Your Honor, I don't think a reply should be a

2 material concern to everyone.  So we'll file a brief with you

3 on Monday, and we'll show up on Tuesday.

4 MS. GLASER:  Your Honor, if I might -- again, I'm

5 not involved in that particular motion.  If you look at the

6 documents the were on the disclosure --

7 MR. PISANELLI:  This is what we're going to brief,

8 Your Honor.

9 MS. GLASER:  Let me -- let me finish.

10 MR. PISANELLI:  We're going to have the oral

11 argument today?

12 MS. GLASER:  May I finish?

13           THE COURT:  No, we're not going to have an oral

14 argument today.

15 MS. GLASER:  Your Honor --

16           THE COURT:  But I'll listen to Ms. Glaser, because

17 if she wants to tell me to do something in the Las Vegas Sands

18 versus Jacobs case, I will certainly listen to her.  But I

19 thought she was going to make a decision not to do anything in

20 that case.

21 MS. GLASER:  I'm not talking that case.

22           THE COURT:  Okay.

23 MS. GLASER:  But I do need to address something that

24 was said by Mr. Pisanelli, and I'd like it to be addressed in

25 the context of the evidentiary hearing, which is of great
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1 concern to us, Your Honor.  Your Honor, if you look at -- and

2 I'm strictly limiting my comments to one thing he said.  If

3 you look at the disclosures made in connection with the

4 evidentiary hearing, you will see Bates stamp numbers that go

5 all the way past 1100.  That means that Mr. Pisanelli and his

6 office and his client have used documents and have literally

7 looked at documents that were taken from us without our

8 permission.

9 MR. PISANELLI:  That is blatantly false --

10           THE COURT:  I'm --

11 MR. PISANELLI:  -- and she says it with nothing to

12 base it on.  We have a thing here called an Internet, and if

13 they want to look they'll find all of those new Bates numbers

14 from the Internet.

15           THE COURT:  Okay.

16 MS. GLASER:  That's not true.

17           THE COURT:  Gentlemen, ladies.  I am not going to

18 address whether there has or has not been a substantive

19 violation of the interim order or whether that somebody has or

20 had not stolen documents or whether somebody has or has not

21 got documents that are protected by the attorney-client

22 privilege.  I'm not going to address that today.

23 MR. PISANELLI:  Fair enough.

24           THE COURT:  And I'm not going to address that in the

25 case called Las Vegas Sands versus Jacobs, because I think
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1 that I'm -- that's part of a discovery dispute that's in

2 Jacobs versus Sands, which the action has been stayed.

3 MR. PISANELLI:  Right.

4           THE COURT:  And luckily, Mr. Justin Jones was kind

5 enough to file an emergency request for relief for the Nevada

6 Supreme Court, which they may do something about.

7 I am, however, very concerned about the issue which

8 I discussed when Mr. Campbell was still counsel of record and

9 we had our discussion I want to say at the end of August about

10 when we were going to schedule the evidentiary hearing and

11 what had to be done so that I could comply with the writ that

12 was issued to me by the Nevada Supreme Court.  And during that

13 original discussion I did have a discussion, and I don't

14 remember who it was that said it first, about whether

15 discovery would be appropriate for jurisdictional issues;

16 because sometimes it is, and when it is it's appropriate to

17 do.  And I suggested at that time that counsel get together

18 and see if they could agree.  My guess by the fact you're here

19 is that you didn't agree.  And the fact that Mr. Pisanelli is

20 new has probably meant that we're here later than we would

21 have been if Mr. Campbell had still been counsel.  So --

22 MS. GLASER:  Let me --

23           THE COURT:  -- that's my preface of where I am today

24 with respect to you guys.

25 MS. GLASER:  Understood.
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1           THE COURT:  So it's your motion, Ms. Glaser.

2 MS. GLASER:  It's actually --

3 MR. PISANELLI:  Your Honor, it's our motion.

4           THE COURT:  Or no, it's Mr. Pisanelli's motion. 

5 Sorry.

6 MR. PISANELLI:  Thank you.  Well, in looking forward

7 to the evidentiary hearing, Your Honor, I have to give the

8 defendants credit for their chutzpa.  I mean, what are we

9 looking at, the position that they are proffering to you that

10 they would like to present?  They asked to be let out of this

11 litigation on grounds of no personal jurisdiction.  They asked

12 now in five different contexts that I and my colleagues be

13 blindfolded to the evidence we rightly possess, these very fun

14 and now very tired labels of "stolen" being thrown out there

15 for press purposes or otherwise.  They give no evidence

16 whatsoever but for a couple of perfunctory, conclusory, self-

17 serving affidavits and original briefs.  They now even go so

18 far, Your Honor, as to offer expert testimony.  And they

19 still, with all that said, come in front of you and say, but

20 no other discovery, don't let them have anything else, this is

21 tough enough, I'm assuming they're saying to themselves, to

22 stay out of this jurisdiction with what we know, don't let

23 them get to the real evidence that will govern this issue.  I

24 have to ask if they even blush when they make these type of

25 arguments, wanting so much and giving so little.
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1 So we start with a couple of general I think

2 irrefutable principles that we have to deal with and

3 defendants have to come to grips with, one of which they like,

4 right.  And that is that we carry this burden.  We'll have the

5 debate of whether the burden is one of prima facie evidence

6 because we are pretrial, or whether because of the nature of

7 the evidentiary hearing we're actually going to go to the

8 preponderance.  But in any event, we carry the burden, and

9 you're not going to hear me dispute that.

10 That legal issue in and of itself has very, very

11 strong consequences and it's what leads us to the very

12 substantial body of law dealing with discovery.  Because we

13 carry the burden, equity says that we have the right to

14 discovery.  And it is a very, very minimal standard that Your

15 Honor has to apply, one that has been characterized as whether

16 our position on jurisdiction over Sands China appears to be

17 clearly frivolous.   If you find that our position is clearly

18 frivolous under the Metcalf decision you can say, no need for

19 discovery because I see where this is going and none of this

20 discovery is going to help this concept of a frivolous notion.

21 And so the question before you today is is our

22 position that Sands China is subject to jurisdiction in this

23 state one that is clearly frivolous?  Well, logically of

24 course, as the new person in the case you know where I

25 started, I started reading, right.  I started reading a lot
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1 about this very topic, including what Your Honor had to say

2 about it.  And Your Honor said that this is not an issue

3 that's clearly frivolous.  Matter of fact, Your Honor said

4 that you saw that there were pervasive contacts that Sands

5 China had with this forum.  Now, I'll be frank, Your Honor. 

6 I'm not altogether clear with what the Supreme Court wrestled

7 with.  I'm not.  I saw what was before you as evidence.  Was

8 testimonial evidence by way of affidavits, it -- there was

9 verified documents before you, as well, there was lot of them. 

10 And you read them and you considered them and you balanced the

11 law, and you found pervasive contacts.

12 So what the Supreme Court didn't see or struggle

13 with, I don't know.  All that matters is they told us to come

14 back and have an evidentiary hearing, and that's what we're

15 going to do, and that's all that really matters.  But the

16 point is this.  In determining whether you can find now that,

17 rather than pervasive, our position is clearly frivolous, you

18 know, do we really need to look beyond what you've already

19 seen and what is in the record today?  We have the two top

20 executives of Sands China live here, CEO and at one time the

21 president, and, of course, the chairman, Mr. Adelson.  They

22 live here, and not only do they live here but they perform

23 their functions, from what we can see and what's in the

24 record, from Las Vegas.  The two top-ranking officials of this

25 company live here and direct this company from Las Vegas.
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1 We know that substantial energy went into designing

2 and developing projects for Sands China here in Las Vegas.  We

3 know that they recruit executives for Sands China here in Las

4 Vegas.  We know numerous contracts with Las Vegas Sands Corp.

5 for sharing responsibilities, et cetera, that Las Vegas Sands

6 Corp. has been so kind as to say are arm's-length deals. 

7 Arm's-length deals.  Doesn't matter that it's its parent. 

8 They are contracting with the Nevada entity.  They're not just

9 contracting with Las Vegas Sands, they're contracting with

10 Bally's, they're negotiating with Harrah's, they're dealing

11 with a company by the name of BASE Entertainment, they're

12 dealing with a company that governs and controls Circ Du

13 Solei.  The point is this.  They purposely direct their

14 energies into this state with contracts with entities from

15 this state.  We'll find out if they're governed by Nevada law

16 and whether they're taking advantage in gaining the

17 protections of Nevada law.  But we're filtering it right now,

18 all this evidence already in the record, through this clearly

19 frivolous standard to see if Sands China can rightly say that

20 no discovery should be allowed.

21 We know we have these ATAs, transfers of $60 million-

22 plus.  Saw the boards Mr. Campbell had prepared that he was

23 using to demonstrate that issue.  I think it was characterized

24 that this entity is being used as a bank so that their

25 customers, Ms. Glaser's words, could have the convenience of
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1 depositing money in China and walking into a Las Vegas casino

2 and taking that value out here, no different than if I went to

3 Bank of America to deposit my paycheck and then showed up in

4 Dublin to get the same type of benefit of my funds with the

5 banking institute.  They don't like the idea of banking, and

6 they say that it's accounting and all that.  But nonetheless,

7 right now we're talking about a clearly frivolous standard of

8 whether Sands China should be subject to discovery.  So --

9           THE COURT:  And you're only talking about

10 jurisdictional discovery at this point.

11 MR. PISANELLI:  I'm sorry.

12           THE COURT:  Jurisdictional discovery.

13 MR. PISANELLI:  Right.  And this is my point, Your

14 Honor.  You already know all of these things in this case in

15 relation to our claim that Sands China is subject to

16 jurisdiction here.  We are going to have an evidentiary

17 hearing, they have rebutted all of these categories and we are

18 entitled -- because we have the burden and because our

19 position is not clearly frivolous, we have the right to

20 conduct this discovery.  That is the simple point that we are

21 making.  And court after court has said under circumstances

22 like this, Your Honor, that if we don't -- if we are not

23 permitted to have discovery, it is, in all due respect, an

24 abuse of your discretion.  So that's how we get here.  Those

25 are the standards that we look at in determining whether
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1 discovery is appropriate.

2 So let's look at the discovery we're asking for that

3 has got everyone so incensed and exercised here.  We're

4 looking really for four depositions.  I have a fifth only

5 because I have played the Sands discovery game in the past in

6 my career, and so just as a safety net I put in a 30(b)(6)

7 deposition, as well, in case I get failing memories one after

8 another or lack of preparedness one after another with

9 witnesses coming in and saying, I don't know.  But a 30(b)(6)

10 will eliminate that.  And so what we're talking about, of

11 course, is those first two people that I mentioned, the

12 highest-ranking officers of Sands China, one currently still

13 holding that position, Mr. Adelson, and the person who took

14 over for Mr. Jacobs as president and acting CEO, Mr. Leven. 

15 We know from the evidence before you, Your Honor, that these

16 two gentlemen have as much to do with that company certainly

17 during the relevant time period as anyone anywhere.  And so

18 where else would we start this analysis but with the

19 deposition of these two people?

20 Remember, we're talking in Mr. Jacobs a person who's

21 a low-level employee, we're not talking about a valet parker

22 here; we're talking about a person who held the position of

23 president and CEO having direct daily communications with

24 these two gentlemen.  If any -- the three key witnesses in

25 this entire debate I would argue are Mr. Jacobs and these two
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1 gentlemen.

2 We also offer a request to take the deposition of

3 two people, who at least from what we have seen in our

4 Internet research, it's not altogether clear whether they hold

5 actual titles with Sands China, but we know that they perform

6 substantial service on behalf of these entities and are

7 involved in actions that show Sands China's reach into Nevada. 

8 Mr. Kay, who has been involved in the financing for this

9 entity, financing that occurred, was negotiated, was executed

10 here in Nevada.  We have Mr. Goldstein, a person who was

11 involved in the international marketing efforts for these VIPs

12 that we've talked about before, and a substantial role in the

13 development of these properties owned and controlled by Sands

14 China.

15 So to suggest that we are being harassing or

16 overreaching really is a stretch.  We have tried to narrowly

17 confine what it is that we want to do, knowing, Your Honor,

18 that you have already told me, no, we're not going to continue

19 this hearing.  So my time to prepare for this hearing is

20 valuable.  I don't have any interest or even the time, for

21 that matter, to harass Mr. Adelson or harass anyone in that

22 company.  I have to get ready for an evidentiary hearing, and

23 that's what I plan on doing, and getting depositions of four

24 people doesn't seem to be an overreach from our perspective,

25 not even -- not even a close call.
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1 The documents -- I could go through them one after

2 another if you'd like, but they speak for themselves.  They

3 are documents intended to show that this company is reaching

4 into this state intentionally, it is obtaining the benefit of

5 the laws of this state, and we intend to show that, whether it

6 be through the contracts it has, contracts with its own

7 parent, contracts with other third parties or -- and we also

8 want to show that its primary officers are directing the

9 management and control of that company from the offices here

10 on Las Vegas Boulevard.  And you can see item by item, Your

11 Honor, that's what we're doing here.  Even the board meetings,

12 we intend to show that these board meetings are being attended

13 by more than two, possibly three, four different directors

14 sitting here in Las Vegas.  Are they on the telephone?  Of

15 course they're on the telephone.  Is it videoconferenced?  I

16 don't know.  But we have board meetings that doesn't really

17 have a meeting place. but one might even fairly say once we

18 get to the bottom of it the actual meeting is taking place

19 with the chairman, the chairman sitting here.  Who's calling

20 who is the point, and shouldn't Your Honor take that into

21 consideration when we determine just how far reaching Sands

22 has been in coming into this jurisdiction.

23 Of course, the ATAs have been debated before, Your

24 Honor.  I was going to say ad nauseam, but we'll say

25 comprehensively the last time we were here.  I would like to
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1 get to the heart of it.  We see a new defense by Ms. Glaser

2 coming up, trying to distance now Sands China from its own

3 subsidiaries.  Sands China indeed wants to be considered an

4 island for all purposes to make sure that you don't hold it

5 responsible for the agency that it offers to its subsidiaries

6 and you don't hold it responsible for the agency it finds in

7 the employees of Las Vegas Sands.  And so we want to get to

8 the heart of this banking system for their VIP customers to

9 show once again that allowing these VIPs to deposit money in

10 China and show up here and gamble with that same money is in

11 fact reaching into this state and being afforded the

12 protections of this state.

13 Now, let's take -- let me take a few minutes to talk

14 about this opposition we received.  The opening paragraph is

15 the same stuff -- it took a lot of restraint for me to just

16 call it "stuff," that we just heard about my propensity and

17 willingness to violate ethical standards and on again this

18 very fun term, hoping the press is watching, of "stolen

19 materials."  What in the world that has to do with discovery

20 is beyond me.  But these are not inexperienced people, they're

21 -- they craftily just cram a sentence at the bottom of this

22 paragraph after trying to taint the well with Your Honor and

23 saying that Jacobs's violations support the denial of

24 jurisdictional discovery.  I don't follow that logical leap. 

25 It was just a way to get this stolen concept in front of you,
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1 hoping that it's going to have an effect on you in the long

2 term.  It obviously has nothing to do with it, and it is

3 indeed a debate that I welcome, and I just can't wait to have

4 it with you, especially with the recklessness that we've seen

5 with this mud slinging and these allegations that are being

6 thrown around.

7 Now, equally and perhaps even more remarkable is the

8 exercise Sands China offers this Court with what they call

9 clear statements of law.  I will correct them as being clear

10 misstatements of law.  We start off with this proposition,

11 relying upon the AT&T case.   I direct Your Honor, I'll be

12 reading just a very quick quote from page 8 of Ms. Glaser's

13 brief where she says, quote, "Under the established legal

14 authority governing jurisdictional discovery none of Jacobs's

15 proposed topics for discovery are relevant to the jurisdiction

16 inquiry, as each seek information that in the absence of an

17 alter ego claim is insufficient as a matter of law to the

18 determination of general personal jurisdiction."  Now, they

19 repeat this statement throughout this brief.  Alter ego, alter

20 ego, alter ego, alter ego, alter ego.  If we are not

21 presenting and proving alter ego, than the contacts between

22 this parent and its subsidiary are relevant, it's a matter of

23 law, and therefore clearly frivolous discovery, we don't need

24 to do it.

25 Here is the problem.  AT&T does indeed address an
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1 issue of a way to obtain personal jurisdiction of an

2 affiliated company, parent and subsidiary, and it can go in

3 the reverse, right, you can into the jurisdiction of the

4 subsidiary, too, and have this debate about the parent, it

5 doesn't have to be the manner in which we're doing it.  But

6 what AT&T does not say, it's Ms. Glaser that says it, is that

7 is the only way.  Alter ego is a -- it says in the -- she

8 says, "In the absence of an alter ego claim," we get no

9 discovery because this evidence is insufficient as a matter of

10 law.  Well, the Goodyear case cited by our own good Supreme

11 Court here does the exact opposite and takes a look not at

12 alter ego, but what we're supposed to do in all jurisdictional

13 debates, Your Honor, and that is, let's take a look at Sands

14 China and see what Sands China is doing in Nevada.  We did not

15 come to this courtroom and we are not going to come in

16 November and have a debate with you to say that Sands China is

17 owned by Las Vegas Sands Corp. and therefore subject to

18 jurisdiction.  That is not our position.

19           THE COURT:  Because that would be a loser.

20 MR. PISANELLI:  That would be one I'd never present

21 to you.  What I'm presenting to you is this, and this comes

22 from the Doe versus Unical case, which I'll read a very quick

23 quote to you, because I think it's telling, Your Honor.  We

24 are going to talk about several different ways that Sands

25 China has knowingly subjected itself to the jurisdiction of

LVSC/SCL0153



25

1 this Court.

2 Now, on this concept of the exclusive way to do so

3 through alter ego, we see in Doe versus Unical Corp., a Ninth

4 Circuit opinion, 248 F. 3rd 915 (2001), Your Honor, the Ninth

5 Circuit analyzed AT&T and the alter ego theory.  That was,

6 coincidentally, Section A of the court's analysis on

7 jurisdiction.  Section B was a thing called agency theory. 

8 Agency theory, not alter ego.  Alter Ego isn't the only way. 

9 Alter ego isn't a prerequisite to this type of discovery. 

10 Agency theory.  The Ninth Circuit told us the agency test "is 

11 satisfied by a showing that the subsidiary functions as the

12 parent corporation's representative in that it performs

13 services that are sufficiently important to the foreign

14 corporation that if it did not have a representative to

15 perform them the corporation's own officials would undertake

16 to perform substantially similar services."

17 Ninth Circuit went on and said, "As the Gallagher

18 court articulated this rule, if a subsidiary performs

19 functions that the parent would otherwise have to perform, the

20 subsidiary then functions as merely the incorporated

21 department of its parent.  Consequently, the question to ask

22 is not whether the American subsidiaries can formally accept

23 orders for their parent, but rather whether in the truest

24 sense the subsidiary's presence substitutes for the presence

25 of the parent."

LVSC/SCL0154



26

1 And so we are not saying alter ego.  We don't care

2 about alter ego yet, but we do care of whether the people in

3 Las Vegas Sands Corp. are acting as an agent and performing

4 functions that, had they not performed them, people in China

5 for Sands China would have to perform them themselves.  And if

6 you look at our discovery request you see that is precisely

7 the nature of the request that we're getting at.

8  Now, it doesn't end there.  We're also simply

9 looking, Your Honor, at what did Sands China do on its own. 

10 Did it contract?  Did its officers come here to conduct

11 business?  Do its officers actually live here to conduct the

12 business of Sands China?  In other words, a total review of

13 the context like the court tells us, an in toto review of all

14 the circumstances in which this company is reaching into

15 Nevada.

16 So my -- in summary at least on the general

17 jurisdiction issue, we are looking not only for Sands China

18 and what it did on its own, we're also looking to see what did

19 Las Vegas Sands Corp. do as an agent for Sands China on

20 circumstances where Sands China would have had to perform

21 these services on their own.  And you see we're asking for

22 those type of shared-services contracts.  That certainly is

23 going to tell us something.  We're looking to see what Mr.

24 Goldstein wants to do in connection with this VIP marketing

25 with or without a contract.  Is that something that would have
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1 to be done out of China if he didn't do it?  What about the

2 financing with Mr. Kay?  If he's not performing those

3 functions here in Las Vegas for Sands China, would Sands China

4 have to have somebody else on their own payroll doing it? 

5 These are all relevant to this analysis.  And that's what the

6 Ninth Circuit certainly told us in Doe versus Unical.

7 There's another misstatement of law that was quite

8 disturbing in Ms. Glaser's briefs, that having to do with

9 transient jurisdiction.  As Your Honor knows, this is an

10 issue, this is a cloud on the horizon if we need to get to it. 

11 Mr. Leven was served.  He is a -- he is an executive, he is an

12 officer of Sands China, or certainly was at the time, and he

13 was served here in Las Vegas.

14 Now, on page 4, in Footnote 2 of Ms. Glaser's brief,

15 she says on line 26, 25-1/2, "As this Court is aware, SCL,

16 Sands China, fully addressed the transient jurisdiction in its

17 reply in support of motion to dismiss for lack of personal

18 jurisdiction, and clearly demonstrated that transient

19 jurisdiction is inapplicable to foreign corporations such

20 as SCL," and she cites the Burnham decision for the United

21 States Supreme Court.  Notably, Your Honor, she cites a

22 Supreme Court case that says that this issue is clearly

23 resolved, and this decision she's citing to is Footnote 1 of

24 Burnham, an issue of such great importance the Supreme Court

25 resolved in Footnote 1.
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1 Well, I don't know if Ms. Glaser thought we wouldn't

2 read it, but we read Footnote 1 -- and I tell you, talk about

3 a moment where you're scratching your head -- telling Your

4 Honor that transient jurisdiction doesn't apply to

5 corporations and it's a well-settled principle of law and will

6 have nothing to do with case.  What did the Supreme Court say

7 in Footnote 1 that was so telling?   Quote, "Even when the

8 cause of action does not arise out of or relate to the foreign

9 corporation's activities in the forum state, due process is

10 not offended by a state subjecting the corporation to its in

11 person -- in personam jurisdiction when there are sufficient

12 contacts between the state and the foreign corporation.  Only

13 our holdings supporting that statement, however, involved

14 regular service of summons upon the corporation's president

15 while he was in the foreign state acting in that capacity." 

16 So far no rejection.

17 The Supreme Court went on, "It may be that whatever

18 special rule exists permitting continuous and systematic

19 contacts to support jurisdiction with respect to matters

20 unrelated to activity in the forum applies only to

21 corporations which have never fitted comfortably in

22 jurisdictional regime based upon de facto power over the

23 defendant's person," a question the Supreme Court is posing in

24 it's footnote.  It may be, the Supreme Court said.

25 Well, the Supreme Court went on to say in relation
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1 to the question it was posing, "We express no views on these

2 matters, and for simplicity's sake, until reference to the

3 aspect of contacts-based jurisdiction in our discussion," a

4 decision where the Supreme Court expressly stated no views,

5 Ms. Glaser tells us clearly establishes that transient

6 jurisdiction doesn't apply to corporations.  Well, the

7 decision that the Supreme Court was relying upon in that very

8 footnote, Perkins decision, Your Honor, which is as telling as

9 anything we can point to, said, "Today if an authorized

10 representative of a foreign corporation be physically present

11 in the state of the forum and be there engaged in activities

12 appropriate to accepting service or receiving notice on its

13 behalf, we recognize that there is no unfairness in subjecting

14 that corporation to the jurisdiction of the courts of that

15 state through such service of process upon that

16 representative."

17 In other words, if Mr. Leven goes to the beach in

18 California, not in his capacity as president of Sands China,

19 and he's served there, would that be fair to say that he's

20 subject to jurisdiction -- or the company is subject to the

21 jurisdiction of California?  Probably not.  He wasn't serving

22 in his function as the officer of that company.  But when a

23 process server comes to Las Vegas Boulevard and hands Mr.

24 Leven service of process in his capacity as the president of

25 Sands China, we know that there is nothing unfair about saying
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1 that Sands China now is subject to transient jurisdiction, an

2 issue settled by Footnote 1 in Burnham, I think not, Your

3 Honor.  And the point is this.  Discovery as to Mr. Leven and

4 his roles and what he does on Las Vegas Boulevard, the

5 function he was serving when he was served is all relevant for

6 transient jurisdiction.  Contrary to what Ms. Glaser tells us,

7 transient jurisdiction is very much alive in this case and

8 something that Your Honor is going to be asked to resolve.

9           THE COURT:  And for the record, something I haven't

10 ruled on to this point.

11 MR. PISANELLI:  Right.  Understood.  So what we

12 have, then, for debate in November general jurisdiction based

13 upon what Sands China does here, general jurisdiction based

14 upon the agency role of Las Vegas Sands and what it performs

15 here on behalf of Sands China, specific jurisdiction of what

16 Sands China did here in relation to the causes of action that

17 was presented to you, and, of course, transient jurisdiction

18 of Sands China.  All of these issues will be debated.  All of

19 the evidence that we have asked goes directly to these four

20 issues.  Sands China can not stand up through Ms. Glaser,

21 through Mr. Adelson, through Mr. Leven, through any of them

22 with a straight face and look you in the eye and say, in light

23 of everything we already know that this type of jurisdiction

24 -- in light of the law governing jurisdiction would be clearly

25 frivolous.  They cannot do that with a straight face.  And
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1 because they can't do that with a straight face, we are

2 entitled to the discovery that is so regularly given to

3 parties who find themselves, like Mr. Jacobs does, in trying

4 to defend against a challenge of personal jurisdiction.

5           THE COURT:  Thank you.

6 Ms. Glaser.

7 MS. GLASER:  Your Honor, I'm coming to you with a

8 straight face.  In our view in no uncertain terms we think

9 that the Nevada Supreme Court order filed August 26th, 2011,

10 speaks volumes.  And what is attempting to be done here is to

11 relitigate issues that have already been determined by the

12 Nevada Supreme Court.  And by that I mean -- and I'm looking

13 specifically, starting on page 2, when it discusses the MGM

14 Grand decision and it discusses the Goodyear decision.  We

15 came to Your Honor and we made a motion to dismiss for lack of

16 personal jurisdiction.  What was presented were facts.  The

17 Court, in our view erroneously, but nonetheless, the Court

18 determined that you had enough to rule on, you made a

19 determination, and we took that to the Nevada Supreme Court. 

20 When we went to the Nevada Supreme Court, the Nevada Supreme

21 Court said, look, based on the MGM case, and more importantly,

22 I think, Your Honor, the Goodyear case, which is a U.S.

23 Supreme Court 2011 case, considered whether jurisdiction over

24 foreign subsidiaries of a U.S. parent corporation was proper

25 by looking only to the subsidiary's conduct.
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1 The discovery that's being sought here is an attempt

2 to bolster a case that they claim, and I'm using their words,

3 you already -- you purportedly already know, you already know

4 the facts, you already know what is sufficient, and the only

5 question is clarifying it for the Nevada Supreme Court so

6 they're clear on what you meant.

7           THE COURT:  That's not what they told me to do. 

8 They told me to conduct an evidentiary hearing.

9 MS. GLASER:  They --

10           THE COURT:  If I've got to conduct an evidentiary

11 hearing, we have to do some more stuff than we've done

12 already.

13 MS. GLASER:  Your Honor, what they're saying is --

14 but there is certain case law that is the law of the case.

15 They're saying, for example, the fact that Mr. Leven and Mr.

16 Adelson are a -- also officers and directors of Las Vegas

17 Sands and they have a 70 percent subsidiary in China, they

18 have an obligation, a supervisory obligation under the

19 Goodyear case and under the MGM case.  There is no question

20 that they have that obligation, and they have a fiduciary

21 obligation to make sure what's going on there they participate

22 in.  No question about that.  We don't debate that.  And the

23 fact that they make a -- they contribute here in connection

24 with what's going on in China, I don't back away from that.  I

25 don't hide from that.  That's not jurisdiction.  That's
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1 performing supervisory responsibilities in their capacity as a

2 parent regarding a subsidiary that's in China.  I do not back

3 away from that at all.  But to call that jurisdiction, in our

4 judgment, is not only wrong, it's already been decided by --

5 in my judgment, that part of it has already been decided by

6 the Nevada Supreme Court.

7 So what is there left in our view?  And I want to be

8 very clear about -- by the way, the Burnham case does stand

9 for the proposition -- I urge the Court to take a look at it

10 whenever it's convenient.  The Burnham case stands for the

11 proposition that transient jurisdiction can't be established

12 by serving Mr. Leven here in Nevada.  And we believe that.  We

13 don't back away from that, either.

14 Now, I want to -- I want to be very clear about

15 this.  We think you don't need any discovery at all, and we

16 think it because six months ago -- I'm probably wrong about

17 how much -- many months ago it was, Your Honor, because I

18 don't remember exactly when we were in front of you --

19           THE COURT:  It was about six months ago.

20 MR. PEEK:  March 15th.

21 MS. GLASER:  They're looking for a second bite of

22 the apple after much has been determined, not everything, I

23 acknowledge that you, much as been determined by the Nevada

24 Supreme Court.  The Nevada Supreme Court wants clarity as to

25 how Your Honor believes you were able to find jurisdiction,
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1 minimum contacts.

2           THE COURT:  If that's what they wanted, Ms. Glaser,

3 they wouldn't have ordered me to have an evidentiary hearing.

4 MS. GLASER:  Your Honor, I think they want you to

5 either bolster or not be able to bolster what has already been

6 -- the facts that were presented to you.  I do believe that. 

7 I'm not arguing that you shouldn't have an evidentiary

8 hearing.  That would be foolish.  The court's asked for that.

9           THE COURT:  Well, they told me to have an

10 evidentiary hearing.

11 MS. GLASER:  Absolutely.

12           THE COURT:  They didn't ask me, they told me.

13 MS. GLASER:  And they didn't tell you, they didn't

14 tell you, by the way, you should order discovery because we

15 always allow discovery in jurisdictional hearings.  Your

16 Honor, if you look at the Metcalf case, perfect case and

17 relied upon by the other side.  The Metcalf case is -- and I'm

18 going to use a bad example, because it's a stranger case. 

19 It's saying, when somebody who is a stranger to the company

20 wants to allege jurisdiction over a parent or a sub they're

21 supposed to get discovery.  I don't argue that point.  Do you

22 think for a moment the other side could argue that Mr. Jacobs

23 is a stranger?  He was the CEO of Sands China.  He was not a

24 stranger, he was a member of the board of Sands China.  He is

25 not entitled to any discovery, frivolous or otherwise.  I
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1 don't care what the standard is, he is not a stranger to these

2 companies at all.  And if you look at the Metcalf case, and

3 it's not just the Metcalf case, Your Honor, it's also --

4 because they cite another one, which stands for exactly the

5 same proposition.  Metcalf is a Third Circuit case, 566 F.3d

6 324.  It's a 2009 decision, and it cites and relies on, and

7 I'm proud to say, a West Virginia case, which is where I'm

8 from.  And in that West Virginia case unequivocally it's

9 talking about strangers.  I don't dispute the fact that -- in

10 this West Virginia case, for the record, Your Honor, is the

11 Bowers case.  It's 202 W.Va. 43, and that Bowers case which

12 Metcalf cites is a case, again, over and over again there are

13 instances when -- I've participated in myself, when

14 jurisdictional discovery is appropriate.  But it's, for

15 example, if somebody has a car accident in Nevada and wants to

16 sue General Motors here, the Nevada subsidiary, and General

17 Motors in Detroit, somebody says, well, wait a minute, you're

18 entitled to discovery to see if there's sufficient contacts. 

19 But there, the guy's a stranger.  He had an accident.  He

20 doesn't know anything about the internal workings of the

21 company.  Jacobs knows everything, and he knows it, and he

22 presented what he had and what he knew, and the Supreme Court

23 said, not enough, before.

24 And what we're saying to you now is no more

25 discovery and certainly not the kind of discovery that's being
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1 sought here, which is the sun, the moon, and the stars, but

2 the Goodyear case and the MGM case provide that no alter ego,

3 no discovery, period.

4 Now, I want to talk about the IAA transactions,

5 because I remember sitting here in court, and Your Honor

6 looked at a board that Mr. Campbell put up, and you actually

7 -- I don't know if it's spontaneously, said, "pervasive," I

8 think was the word in the transcript.  And I'm saying to you,

9 respectfully, that's a wrong view of what is going on.  Mr.

10 Jacobs came to Your Honor under oath and he told Your Honor

11 that money changed hands.  We quickly determined that wasn't

12 the case, that Mr. Jacobs either was wrong or not telling the

13 truth.  I hope it's simply that he was wrong.  He comes and

14 tells Your Honor that.  And then we find out what really

15 happens is -- and all of this is nothing more than a

16 bookkeeping entry which case after case, and we cite them in

17 our brief, when you joint marketing, when you have

18 accommodations made between a subsidiary and a parent it is

19 not sufficient for jurisdiction, it's just not.

20 One of the things they said is -- and I -- this one

21 I love.  Your Honor may remember VML.  There was a motion to

22 dismiss for lack of a -- failure to join an indispensable

23 party.  And Your Honor said what I think is both the truth and

24 the law, I don't have any jurisdiction over VML.  You --

25           THE COURT:  Well, I also asked if I let the case go
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1 in Macau if everybody would consent to jurisdiction in Macau,

2 and nobody said yes.

3 MS. GLASER:  No.  We said yes.

4 MR. PEEK:  I said yes, as well, Your Honor.

5 MS. GLASER:  They said yes.

6           THE COURT:  You did not say yes --

7 MR. PEEK:  Yes, I did, Your Honor.

8           THE COURT:  -- at the time.

9 MS. GLASER:  Well, let me just tell you.  We have

10 always been willing to do that.

11 MR. PEEK:  No.  I said -- you go back to that

12 transcript, Your Honor.  You'll see that.

13 MS. GLASER:  And in fact there has been prior

14 litigation between American citizens and Sands China in Macau,

15 because that is the appropriate forum.  I'm not contesting

16 otherwise.  But we haven't changed our tune.  VML -- because I

17 want to stick with VML.  VML -- I'm supposed -- after we came,

18 I think it was Mr. Peek's motion, made a motion to join VML,

19 you said you didn't have jurisdiction.  I think you're clearly

20 right about that.  It is VML that is party to all of these IAA

21 transactions.  It is the subconcessionaire, it is the entity.

22 Now, if you want to ignore that, I don't think

23 that's fair.  VML is a absolutely appropriate corporate entity

24 in Macau.  It has the transactions for IAA.  And we've been

25 willing and we'll open our books on that in a second because
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1 that's true.  So for them to now say -- gloss over that and

2 pretend VML is not the proper party is just, by the way,

3 turning truth on its head, Your Honor.  And that's not fair. 

4 You can't have it both ways.  VML is the only entity that's

5 involved in those IAA transactions as a matter of fact and as

6 a matter of law.

7 Now, let me just go on for a couple minutes.  In the

8 Goodyear case, Your Honor, Goodyear --

9           THE COURT:  Because I'm breaking in five minutes,

10 because we don't pay overtime.

11 MS. GLASER:  I'll try to finish.  There was a

12 filibuster conducted a few moments ago, so I'm stuck with my

13 five minutes.

14           THE COURT:  I understand.  You're welcome to come

15 back tomorrow, when Mr. Peek's partner's trial will resume.

16 MS. GLASER:  Your Honor, I am willing to come back

17 any time.  That's how strongly we feel about this.

18           THE COURT:  Okay.  I understand.  It's not like I'm

19 not familiar with these issues --

20 MS. GLASER:  I understand.

21           THE COURT:  -- because I handle these issues in

22 Business Court frequently --

23 MS. GLASER:  I know you do.

24           THE COURT:  -- in similar contexts with

25 international companies, and I'm not sure what the right
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1 answer is, because the Nevada Supreme Court has yet to clarify

2 some of those things.

3 MS. GLASER:  But the Nevada Supreme Court clearly

4 said, and they quoted -- strike that.  They didn't quote, they

5 cited Goodyear --

6           THE COURT:  Yes.

7 MS. GLASER:  -- prominently.  And that case declined

8 to impute the domestic parent's activities to a foreign

9 subsidiary defendant, recognizing that merging a parent and a

10 sub for jurisdictional purposes requires an inquiry, quote,

11 "comparable to the corporate law question of piercing

12 corporate veil," end of quote.

13 Here supervisory activities, which was clearly the

14 way it was presented to Your Honor before and what was

15 considered by the -- just as importantly, the Nevada Supreme

16 Court, that's all that's here.  And no amount of discovery

17 could or would show to the contrary.  They are required, Leven

18 and Adelson are required in their capacity as part of the

19 parent with a 70 percent subsidiary, they are required to

20 exercise their fiduciary duties and engage in supervisory

21 activities.  We don't deny that, and we never have.  And

22 that's what was presented to Your Honor up the -- excuse the

23 expression, up the yazoo before.  And Your Honor heard that,

24 Your Honor made the determination, we think wrongly, but the

25 Nevada Supreme Court says you've got to get the law right and
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1 the facts right.  The facts we heard.  Now you've got to apply

2 the law to those facts.  And that's what I think the

3 evidentiary hearing --

4           THE COURT:  That's not what they said.  What they

5 said is, based on the record before them, which is the

6 transcript and a very poorly written order by Mr. Campbell,

7 that they can't tell what I ruled on.  So they ordered me to

8 have an evidentiary hearing.  So I'm going to have an

9 evidentiary hearing --

10 MS. GLASER:  Your Honor --

11           THE COURT:  -- and I'm going to make detailed

12 findings of fact and conclusions of law, and then they're

13 going to decide if I'm right.

14 MS. GLASER:  Correct.  And I'm saying --

15           THE COURT:  That's what's going to happen.

16 MS. GLASER:  I want to use this, if I could, the IAA

17 transactions one more time, because I have about three more

18 minutes.

19           THE COURT:  You're winning on that issue.

20 MS. GLASER:  Okay.  Never mind.  I'll stop.

21 Your Honor, what is particularly concerning to us is

22 that the disclosure being sought -- and I -- and I say this --

23 I'm not suggesting -- this is not attributable to Counsel.  I

24 hope not, anyway.  But I say to you we cited to you the

25 Zahodnik case.  If a client has taken documents
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1 inappropriately, and we cited to you the policy that was in 

2 place in Macau, they can't be used in an evidentiary hearing

3 or any proceeding, and they can't be used by counsel, and they

4 certainly can't be used by Mr. Jacobs.  And I don't think

5 that's particularly unusual, but there is a very clear policy

6 that we put forth that --

7           THE COURT:  I'm going to resolve that issue on

8 October 13th at 9:00 o'clock.

9 MS. GLASER:  Okay.  Your Honor, we don't believe any

10 discovery should be taken.  Certainly they don't need any

11 depositions.  If they need some IAA documents to demonstrate

12 further about VML, glad to provide them.  But, Your Honor,

13 what's here is a complete overreach.

14 MR. PISANELLI:  Did you file something?

15 MR. PEEK:  I don't think I need to file anything,

16 Your Honor.

17           THE COURT:  Mr. Pisanelli, I need to ask you a

18 question.

19 MR. PISANELLI:  Yes, ma'am.

20           THE COURT:  It appears to me at least in part Ms.

21 Glaser is right, that some of your requests are overbroad. 

22 There is no limitation of time as to many of these requests. 

23 Can you give me what you believe to be a reasonable time.  And

24 you can think about it while I hear from Mr. Peek, who didn't

25 file a brief, so he's going to be really short in his
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1 comments.

2 MR. PEEK:  Well, Your Honor, I don't think I --

3           THE COURT:  Because he has 30 seconds before I'm

4 shutting down.

5 MR. PEEK:  Okay.  My 30 seconds relates to your

6 request to take discovery from Las Vegas Sands Corp. as a

7 purported agent of Sands China Limited when I am not permitted

8 to move forward with my motions with respect to theft of the

9 documents of Las Vegas Sands, and yet he's allowed to take

10 discovery against Las Vegas Sands in the face of the stay. 

11 That seems to me to be highly improper on the part of his

12 request, the sword and the shield.  And I'll sit down, because

13 the staff has to leave, Your Honor, and I --

14           THE COURT:  I didn't issue the stay, Mr. Peek.

15 MR. PEEK:  I understand that.

16           THE COURT:  I certainly understand your frustration.

17 MR. PEEK:  But let's honor the stay and not allow

18 discovery against Las Vegas Sands as he is requesting it to be

19 conducted.

20           THE COURT:  I understand your position.

21 Mr. Pisanelli, could you give me a reasonable time

22 limit.

23 MR. PISANELLI:  I can.  Mr. Jacobs appears to have

24 started his service for the company in 2006, and so we would

25 ask --
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1 MS. GLASER:  I'm sorry.  What was that?

2 MR. PISANELLI:  2006.  And so we would ask that the

3 discovery be limited between 2006 to the present.

4           THE COURT:  He didn't start in 2006.

5 MR. PISANELLI:  He didn't?

6 MS. GLASER:  No.  2009.

7 MR. PEEK:  Your Honor, we have a stipulation already

8 with respect to the scope of discovery generally of January

9 2009 through October 2010.  We already have that.

10           THE COURT:  That's what I thought.  That's what I

11 thought.  I thought we had one that was '09.

12 MR. PEEK:  We do, Your Honor.

13 MR. PISANELLI:  He was performing services back in

14 -- as early as 2006, Your Honor.  I can provide that to you. 

15 But that's our position.

16 MS. GLASER:  That's absolutely incorrect.

17           THE COURT:  Okay.  Wait, wait, wait.  Sit down.  Let

18 me tell you what we're doing.

19 To the extent I permit any depositions, and I'm

20 going to tell you which ones I'm allowing, the depositions are

21 limited to the capacity the deponent is being taken in with

22 respect to work done on or -- done for or on behalf of Sands

23 China.  That means that if someone is working in capacities

24 for both Las Vegas Sands and Sands China, we're not going to

25 ask them about their daily activities with Las Vegas Sands. 
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1 However, to the extent their work is on behalf of Sands China

2 or directly for Sands China, it will be fair game.

3 MR. PISANELLI:  Questions at the end, or now?

4           THE COURT:  Not yet.

5 MR. PISANELLI:  Okay.

6           THE COURT:  Time periods, January 1, '09, through

7 October 1, 2010.  Mr. Leven's deposition may be taken, Mr.

8 Adelson's deposition may be taken.  I'd really rather not get

9 into a dispute where Mr. Adelson's deposition is taken.  So if

10 you guys would just listen to what the Federal Court judge

11 said.  Mr. Kay's deposition, Mr. Goldstein's deposition, a

12 narrowly tailored 30(b)(6) deposition of Sands China

13 representatives.  And I assume if there is an issue, someone

14 will raise it in a protective order motion.

15 Issues related to the location and scheduling of

16 board meetings, along with copies of the minutes of board

17 meetings, as well as the list of attendees and how they

18 participated in board meetings from January 1st, 2009, to

19 October 1st, 2010; documents that relate to travels from

20 Macau, China, Hong Kong, by Adelson, Leven, Goldstein, and any

21 other individual who is employed by Las Vegas Sands who was

22 acting on behalf of Sands China will be provided.

23 I am not going to require the calendars to be

24 provided.  I'm not requiring phone records to be provided.

25 Documents related to Mr. Leven's service as CEO
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1 without being compensation [sic], which is Number 9.  Number

2 11 is fair game.  Number 12, to the extent they are documents

3 by Mr. Goldstein that would be subject to issues that you're

4 going to discuss with him at his deposition with the

5 limitation that I have given you.  Agreements between Las

6 Vegas Sands and Sands China related to services that are

7 performed by Las Vegas Sands on behalf of Sands China.  That

8 is covered by Number 13.

9 Item Number 14 I'm not going to permit.

10 Item Number 15 I am going to permit.

11 Item Number 16 I am going to permit.

12 Item Number 17 I am not going to permit.

13 Item 18 I am going to permit.

14 19 I'm permitting.

15 20 I've already said I'm not permitting.

16 And now for your questions so I can get my staff out

17 of here.

18 MR. PISANELLI:  Just very quickly.  The only

19 question I have on the capacity of acting on behalf of Sands

20 China, we have a company that elected to give dual roles.  And

21 so while Ms. Glaser says everything Mr. Adelson did, by way of

22 example, was part of the exercise and fulfillment of his

23 fiduciary duties to oversee the subsidiary, in a vacuum, if he

24 was only the chairman of Las Vegas Sands, there would be merit

25 to that argument.  What don't want to happen is have a debate
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transcript reflects only that the district court concluded there were 

"pervasive contacts" between petitioner and Nevada, without specifying 

any of those contacts. We have therefore found it impossible to determine 

the basis for the district court's order or whether the district court 

intended its order to be its final decision regarding jurisdiction or if it 

intended to consider the matter further after the admission of evidence at 

trial (or an evidentiary hearing before trial). 

In MGM Grand, Inc. v. District Court,  107 Nev. 65, 807 P.2d 

201 (1991), we held that jurisdiction over a nonresident corporation could 

not be premised upon that corporation's status as parent to a Nevada 

corporation. Similarly, the United States Supreme Court in Goodyear 

Dunlop Tires Operations, S.A. v. Brown,  131 S. Ct. 2846 (2011), considered 

whether jurisdiction over foreign subsidiaries of a U.S. parent corporation 

was proper by looking only to the subsidiaries' conduct; the Court 

suggested that including the parent's contacts with the forum would be, in 

effect, the same as piercing the corporate veil. Based on the record before 

us, it is impossible to determine if the district court in fact relied on the 

Nevada parent corporation's contacts in this state in exercising 

jurisdiction over the foreign subsidiary. 

Accordingly, having reviewed the petition, answer, reply, and 

other documents before this court,' we conclude that, based on the 

summary nature of the district court's order and the holdings of the cases 

'Petitioner's motion for leave to file a reply in support of its stay 
motion is granted, and we direct the clerk of this court to detach and file 
the reply attached to the August 10, 2011, motion. We note that NRAP 
27(a)(4) was amended in 2009 to permit a reply in support of a motion 
without specific leave of this court; thus, no such motion was necessary. 

LVSC/SCL0127



/ 
Hardesty Parraguirre 

3 
?-7P3Ve.:4 

cited above, the petition should be granted, in part. We therefore direct 

the district court to revisit the issue of personal jurisdiction over petitioner 

by holding an evidentiary hearing and issuing findings regarding general 

jurisdiction. If the district court determines that general jurisdiction is 

lacking, it shall consider whether the doctrine of transient jurisdiction, as 

set forth in Cariaga v. District Court, 104 Nev. 544, 762 P.2d 886 (1988), 

permits the exercise of personal jurisdiction over a corporate defendant 

when a corporate officer is served within the state. We further direct that 

the district court shall stay the underlying action, except for matters 

relating to a determination of personal jurisdiction, until a decision on 

that issue has been entered. We therefore 

ORDER the petition GRANTED AND DIRECT THE CLERK 

OF THIS COURT TO ISSUE A WRIT OF MANDAMUS instructing the 

district court to hold an evidentiary hearing on personal jurisdiction, to 

issue findings of fact and conclusions of law stating the basis for its 

decision following that hearing, and to stay the action as set forth in this 

order until after entry of the district court's personal jurisdiction decision. 2  

Saitta 

2Petitioner's motion for a stay is denied as moot in light of this 
order. 
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1 LAS VEGAS, NEVADA, TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 27, 2011, 4:07 P.M.

2 (Court was called to order)

3           THE COURT:  All right.  Can everybody please

4 identify themselves who's participating in the argument on

5 Jacobs versus Sands.

6 MR. PISANELLI:  Good afternoon, Your Honor.  James

7 Pisanelli on behalf of the plaintiff.

8 MS. GLASER:  Good afternoon, Your Honor.  Patricia

9 Glaser for Sands China, here only on the issues involving the

10 evidentiary hearing.

11 MR. PEEK:  And good afternoon, Your Honor.  Stephen

12 Peek on behalf of Las Vegas Sands Corp.

13           THE COURT:  Okay.  I think I have four agenda items,

14 some of which you don't know about.  One is each of you has

15 submitted order shortening times, or at least side has

16 submitted order shortening times.  One is in the Las Vegas

17 Sands versus Jacobs case, which I haven't signed, and one is

18 in the Jacobs versus Las Vegas Sands case.  One's by Ms.

19 Glaser, one's by Mr. Peek.  Does anybody want to discuss with

20 me the briefing schedule that we should have before I have to

21 have a conference call like I just did with Mr. Backus and his

22 adverse counsel?

23 MR. PEEK:  Well, Your Honor, I sort of fall in the

24 same trap that you did with Mr. Pisanelli's motion that we're

25 here today on the jurisdictional discovery which, I think was
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1 set on about three days' notice.  We're happy with three days'

2 notice.

3 MR. PISANELLI:  Three days' notice on an issue that

4 has no relevancy until November?  I'd ask Your Honor to give

5 us the appropriate amount of time to respond to what appears

6 to be --

7           THE COURT:  The motion in limine.

8 MR. PEEK:  I was just talking about my motion.

9           THE COURT:  See, I've got a motion for sanctions,

10 and I've got a motion in limine.

11 MR. PEEK:  Yeah.  I --

12           THE COURT:  I've got two different kinds of motions.

13 MS. GLASER:  Actually, the --

14 MR. PISANELLI:  This is all news to me.  I haven't

15 seen them.

16           THE COURT:  Oh.  Okay.

17 MS. GLASER:  Your Honor, with respect to the motion

18 in limine, which I -- is the only one that I can address, we

19 would like it as quickly as humanly possible.  Mr. Pisanelli

20 has been served with a motion in limine.  We are asking for -- 

21 that the -- no documents stolen by Mr. Jacobs be utilized in

22 connection with anything having to do with the evidentiary

23 hearing.  And I think that issue needs to be resolved as soon

24 as possible by Your Honor.

25           THE COURT:  Okay.
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1 MR. PISANELLI:  I'll object to --

2           THE COURT:  Well, wait.

3 MR. PISANELLI:  I'm sorry.

4           THE COURT:  Let me go to -- I don't sign OSTs on

5 motions in limine usually.  That's the general rule.  So let

6 me go to a subset of the situation in this particular case.

7 Has anybody heard from the Nevada Supreme Court on

8 the emergency petition that Justin Jones was kind enough to

9 take me up on and file?

10 MS. GLASER:  No, Your Honor, we have not.

11 MR. PEEK:  We have not, Your Honor.

12           THE COURT:  It's not your fault.

13 MR. PEEK:  No, it's not, Your Honor.

14           THE COURT:  I'm not saying it's your fault.

15 MR. PEEK:  Your Honor, the motion was just filed, so

16 I didn't expect the Supreme Court to hear it.  And I hope you

17 heard about it not from the newspapers as opposed to --

18           THE COURT:  This time it was served on --

19 MR. PEEK:  Good.

20           THE COURT:  -- me as required by the rules, and I

21 looked at it.  And I didn't read about it in the paper.  So I

22 certainly understand, Ms. Glaser, that you would like to have

23 this heard sooner, rather than later.  The issues are

24 integrally interrelated with the issues that are the subject

25 of this what I'm calling a discovery dispute which isn't
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1 before the Nevada Supreme Court, which unfortunately I can't

2 resolve because of the stay that is in place.  But in

3 connection with the hearing that is upcoming I can certainly

4 address it as part of that process.  But the question's going

5 to be how long are we going to do it, and I'm not going to

6 shorten it to three, four days.

7 MS. GLASER:  Your Honor, I obviously will bow to

8 whatever you want to do in that regard.  It clearly needs to

9 be resolved, because we think if you look at the disclosures

10 that were served on us that they intend to -- documents they

11 intend to use, those are documents that were stolen, in our

12 view, I don't think there's a different view from -- by Mr.

13 Jacobs, some of which are attorney-client privileged

14 documents.  Your Honor, none of these documents should be

15 utilized in connection with any evidentiary hearing set for

16 November 21.

17           THE COURT:  Mr. Pisanelli, have you seen the motion

18 in limine yet?

19 MR. PISANELLI:  No.

20           THE COURT:  Okay.  Assume you get a copy in the next

21 day or so --

22 MR. PISANELLI:  It was served.  I haven't seen it.

23           THE COURT:  It looks a lot like this.

24 MR. PISANELLI:  It was served.  I just haven't seen

25 it.
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1 MR. PEEK:  And mine was also served, Your Honor, on

2 Mr. Pisanelli.

3           THE COURT:  The text of the motion is 12 pages and,

4 gosh, it looks a lot like what we're dealing with on the

5 motion that we dealt with a week ago Friday and the motion we

6 dealt with --

7 MR. PISANELLI:  Sure.

8           THE COURT:  -- Monday?

9 MR. PEEK:  A week ago Tuesday, I think, Your Honor.  

10 Maybe Monday.

11 MS. GLASER:  It's actually more restricted, because

12 it only deals with documents in connection with the

13 evidentiary hearing, Your Honor.

14           THE COURT:  Okay.

15 MR. PISANELLI:  Okay.

16           THE COURT:  So it's the same issue that we've been

17 talking about.

18 MR. PISANELLI:  So Ms. Glaser will be surprised, I'm

19 sure, when she says that no one disagrees on what to do or

20 even what we have, we have a lot of disagreement even with

21 the --

22           THE COURT:  I'm not arguing the motion today.

23 MR. PISANELLI:  -- labels that are being thrown

24 around with stolen documents.  Understood.

25           THE COURT:  I'm not arguing it.  I'm just want to
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1 know how long you think you need to brief it.

2 MR. PISANELLI:  Give me -- I'm leaving town for a

3 mediation tomorrow, so I'm going to be out for the next couple

4 days.  So since our hearing doesn't begin until November, I

5 would ask for 10 days.

6           THE COURT:  That means I need a response for you --

7 from you by next Friday, which is October 7th.

8 MR. PISANELLI:  Okay.

9           THE COURT:  Ms. Glaser, once you get that, how long

10 do you need before you give me a reply brief?

11 MS. GLASER:  The 10th, Your Honor.

12           THE COURT:  That's the Monday.  So do you want to

13 have a hearing on October 13th, which is the day Mr.

14 Pisanelli's already scheduled to be here with Mr. Ferrario

15 which you're trying to move?  Does that work?

16 MS. GLASER:  Absolutely.

17           THE COURT:  All right.

18           THE CLERK:  What time?

19           THE COURT:  9:00 o'clock.

20           THE CLERK:  Thank you.

21           THE COURT:  So we have negotiated the first of our

22 issues.

23 Now with respect to Mr. Peeks sanction motion,

24 Mr. Peek, this I guess is because you believe there has been a

25 violation of the interim order that I entered because I really
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1 think that the Las Vegas Sands versus Jacobs is a subset of

2 the Jacobs versus Sands discovery dispute.

3 MR. PEEK:  I know.  And we disagree with the --

4           THE COURT:  I understand.

5 MR. PEEK:  -- the Court on that, so -- but we can

6 certainly agree to disagree.

7           THE COURT:  But it's a violation of the interim

8 order that I entered in that case.

9 MR. PEEK:  That is correct, Your Honor.  Because

10 what we found when we saw the disclosures that Mr. Pisanelli

11 submitted in this case --

12           THE COURT:  The Jacobs versus Sands case.

13 MR. PEEK:  -- the Jacobs versus Sand -- what we saw

14 clearly were attorney-client communications.

15           THE COURT:  Okay.

16 MR. PEEK:  And I remember Mr. Pisanelli standing

17 before this Court and talking in his -- about he was not going

18 to violate the rules of professional responsibility, he was

19 not going to violate the Nevada Rules of Civil Procedure so

20 what was the harm and why do we need all this relief.  Well,

21 now we know.  We also know, Your Honor, and perhaps the Court

22 didn't know this, is that the docket has been closed in the

23 remand to -- from the Nevada Supreme Court to this Court --

24           THE COURT:  I read that in --

25 MR. PEEK:  Yes.
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1           THE COURT:  -- the writ petition.

2 MR. PEEK:  So we didn't -- we had to open a docket

3 with the Nevada Supreme Court.  We can't go back to that same

4 docket.  So --

5           THE COURT:  I was surprised that occurred, since --

6 MR. PEEK:  I was too, Your Honor.

7           THE COURT:  -- they told me to send it back up.

8 MR. PEEK:  I was actually very surprised that that's

9 happened.

10           THE COURT:  I thought I had a Honeycutt issue

11 basically that I was dealing with.

12 MR. PEEK:  That's kind of what I thought, as well,

13 Your Honor, was really a Honeycutt issue.  So we had to open a

14 new docket.  So we're concerned that we won't be able to get

15 the relief that we want within the two weeks that the Court

16 gave us, and we now have a clear violation of the interim

17 order, well, with respect to the review of attorney-client

18 privileged documents that Mr. Pisanelli told us he wasn't

19 going to look at.

20           THE COURT:  Mr. Pisanelli, just assume with me for a

21 minute that Mr. Peek has a point, whether it's right or not. 

22 Just assume he has a point.  I know.  How long is it going to

23 take you to respond to this one?

24 MR. PISANELLI:  Well, I would say the same.  I would

25 hope that between now and the 10 days that I respond that
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Date Description Vol. # Page Nos,
3/16/2011 First Amended Complaint

1 LVSC/SCL
0001-20

4/1/2011 Order Denying Defendants’ 1 LVSC/SCL
Motions to Dismiss 0021-22

5/6/2011 Petition for Writ of Mandamus, 1 LVSCL
or in the Alternative, Writ of 0023-68
Prohibition

7/25/2011 Answer of Real Party in Interest LVSC/SCL
Steven C. Jacobs to Petition for 1 0069-100
Writ of Mandamus, or in the
Alternative, Writ of Prohibition

8/9/2011 Petitioner’s Reply in Support of LVSC/SCL
Petition for Writ of Mandamus, 1 0101-125
or in the Alternative, Writ of
Prohibition

8/26/2011 Order Granting Petition for Writ 1 SC/5CL
of Mandamus 0126-129

Transcript: Hearing on 1 LVSC/SCL
9/27/2011 Plaintiff’s Motion to Conduct 0130-182

Jurisdictional Discovery
10/13/2011 Transcript: Hearing on Sands 1 LVSC/SCL

China’s Motion in Limine and 0183-247
Motion for Clarification of Order

/ / Defendants’ Statement Regarding LVSC/SCL
Hearing on Sanctions 2 0002 8-7

9/12/2012 Transcript: Court’s Sanction 2 LVSC/SCL
Hearing — Day 3 0279-356

1



Date Description Vol # Page Nos
9/14/2012 Decision and Order 2 LVSC/SCL

0357-65
11/16/2012 Plaintiff Steven C, Jacob’s Motion LVSC/SCL

to Compel Production of
2 000366-403

Documents Used by Witness to
Refresh Recollection

12/4/2012 Defendant Sand China Ltd ‘s LVSC/SCL
Motion for a Protective Order on 2 0404-30
Order Shortening Time

12/6/2012 Transcript: Hearing on Motion LVSC/SCL
for Protective Order 0431-89

2

12/7/2012 Defendant& Opposition to LVSC/SCL
Plaintiff’s Motion to Compel 0490-502
Production of Documents Used 2
by Witness to Refresh
Recollection

12/14/2012 Reply in Support of Plaintiff LVSC/SCL
Steven C. Jacobs’ Motion to 000503-08
Compel Production of 3
Documents Used by Witness to
Refresh Recollection

1/08/2013 Defendant Sands China Ltd.’s LVSC/SCL
Report on Its Compliance with 3 000509-68
the Court’s Ruling of December
18, 2012

1/17/2013 Order Regarding Plaintiff Steven LKVSC/SCL
C. Jacobs’ Motion to Compel 3 0569-71
Production of Documents Used
by Witness to Refresh
Recollection

1/18/2013 Notice of Entry of Order 3 LVSC/SCL
000572-76

2



APPENDIX TO EMERGENCY PETITION FOR WRIT OF PROHIBITION OR
MANDAMUS TO PROTECT PRIVILEGED DOCUMENTS

ALPHABETICAL INDEX

Date Description Vol. # Page Nos.
7/25/2011 Answer of Real Party in Interest LVSC/SCL

Steven C. Jacobs to Petition for 1 0069-100
Writ of Mandamus, or in the
Alternative, Writ of Prohibition

9/14/2012 Decision and Order 2 LVSC/SCL
0357-65

12/4/2012 Defendant Sand China Ltd.’s LVSC/SCL
Motion for a Protective Order on 2 0404-30
Order Shortening Time

1 /08/2013 Defendant Sands China Ltd.’s LVSC/SCL
Report on Its Compliance with

3 000509-68
the Court’s Ruling of December
18, 2012

12/7/2012 Defendants’ Opposition to LVSC/SCL
Plaintiff’s Motion to Compel 0490-502
Production of Documents Used 2
by Witness to Refresh
Recollection

8/27/2012 Defendants’ Statement Regarding LVSC /SCL
Hearing on Sanctions 2 000248-78

3/16/2011 First Amended Complaint
1 LVSC/SCL

0001-20

1/18/2013 Notice of Entry of Order 3 LVSC/SCL
000572-76

4/1/2011 Order Denying Defendants’
1 LVSC/SCL

Motions to Dismiss 0021-22
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Date Description Vol # Page Nos
8/26/2011 Order Granting Petition for Writ 1 LVSC/SCL

of Mandamus 0126-129
1/17/2013 Order Regarding Plaintiff Steven LKVSC/SCL

C. Jacobs’ Motion to Compel
3 0569-71

Production of Documents Used
by Witness to Refresh
Recollection

5/6/2011 Petition for Writ of Mandamus,
1 LVSC/SCL

or in the Alternative, Writ of 0023-68
Prohibition

8/9/2011 Petitioner’s Reply in Support of LVSC/SCL
Petition for Writ of Mandamus, 1 0101-125
or in the Alternative, Writ of
Prohibition

11/16/2012 Plaintiff Steven C. Jacob’s Motion LVSC/SCL
to Compel Production of 2 000366-403
Documents Used by Witness to
Refresh Recollection

12/14/2012 Reply in Support of Plaintiff LVSC/SCL
Steven C. Jacobs’ Motion to 000503-08
Compel Production of 3
Documents Used by Witness to
Refresh Recollection

9/12/2012 Transcript: Court’s Sanction
2 LVSC/SCL

Hearing — Day 3 0279-356

12/6/2012 Transcript: Hearing on Motion LVSC/SCL
for Protective Order 2 0431-89

Transcript: Hearing on
1 LVSC/SCL

9/27/2011 Plaintiff’s Motion to Conduct 0130-182
Jurisdictional Discovery

10/13/2011 Transcript: Hearing on Sands 1 LVSC/SCL
China’s Motion in Limine and 0183-247
Motion for Clarification of Order
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

Pursuant to Nev. R. App. P. 25, I certify that I am an employee

of MORRIS LAW GROUP; that, in accordance therewith, I caused a copy of

the APPENDIX TO EMERGENCY PETITION FOR WRIT OF

PROHIBITION OR MANDAMUS TO PROTECT PRIVILEGED

DOCUMENTS to be served as indicated below, on the date and to the

addressee(s) shown below:

VIA HAND DELIVERY ON 1/24/13
Judge Elizabeth Gonzalez
Eighth Judicial District Court of
Clark County, Nevada
Regional Justice Center
200 Lewis Avenue
Las Vegas, Nevada 89155

Respondent

VIA ELECTRONIC AND U.S. MAIL
James J. Pisanelli
Todd L. Bice
Debra Spinelli
Pisanelli Bice
3883 Howard Hughes Parkway, Suite 800
Las Vegas, Nevada 89169

Attorneys for Steven C. Jacobs, Real Party in Interest

DATED this 23rd day of January, 2013.

By: Is! PATRICIA FERRUGIA
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